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The report of the Board of Directors for the year ended 31/12/2020

A— Chairman of Board of Directors Message: —

Distinguished shareholders

on my own behalf and on behalf of my fellow board members, I welcome you and thank you for
accepting the invitation to attend this annual meeting of your esteemed body and through audio-
visual communication technology. We hope you are in health and wellness.
Gentlemen: -

Subsequent to what was mentioned in our annual report last year regarding the decision of the
Jordanian Armed Forces - the Arab Army not to renew the agreement for the purchase of military
fabrics from our subsidiary company (Jordan Fabric and Worsted Manufacturing Co PLC) beyond
the year 2020, production in our company's factories has been stopped at the end of January of the
year 2020 after manufactured all the fabrics required under the agreement. Accordingly, all the
excess workers were laid off and all their rights paid, in addition to extra financial rewards. Our
company will continue to the delivery of the fabric stocks required under the above agreement to

all the security authorities and on the agreed dates.

praise be to God Almighty, positive results have been achieved in the revenues of our
company from the profits of its investments in the shares of Jordanian companies and from our
subsidiary companies, despite the fact that no profits were distributed for its investments in banks
as a result of the decision of the Central Bank as a result of the Corona pandemic that swept our
beloved Jordan and the whole world. This led to a massive damage to the economy and to a sharp
drop in stock prices in the Amman Financial Market. We pray to the Almighty to deliver us and

the whole world from this pestilence. And that the economy wheel returns to rotation.

In conclusion, we would like to affirm our pride and appreciation to our Jordanian Armed Forces
- the Arab Army and all the Security Authorities in preserving the security and safety of our dear
Jordan under the patronage of his Majesty King Abdullah II bin Al Hussein, I also reiterate my
heartfelt thanks to all the employees and those who worked with us for their cooperation and

sincerity in their work during the past years.

Imad Mouasher

Chairman of Board of Directors



B- Board of Directors Report

Messrs. The member of the general assembly: —

We are pleased to put in your hands our report on the company's activities and the most
important of it during the financial year ended 31/12/2020, in accordance with Article (4-b) of the
Instructions for the Disclosure of Exporting Companies, Accounting Standards and Auditing
Standards for the year 2004, effective from 1/3/2004. As follows: —

1 -A - The main activity of the company is the production and manufacture worsted (fabrics) in
all forms and different types of woolen and wool blended and synthetic summer, winter, military,
civil and trading of it.

"T'o establish, build, equip and managing a factory / factory to make the above and invest its
money in buying and selling shares of companies and financial bonds, and to buy, sell, rent or
replace any movable or immovable properties or the rights or privileges deemed necessary by the
company.

B- Geographical Location: The main office in Jawharat Al Shmeisani Building 18 Allal Al Fassi
Street - Shmeisani — Amman. in addition to the offices of the company located in the premises of
the subsidiary company (Jordan Fabric and Worsted Manufacturing Co.) .7 king Hussein Street
Rusaifa ~Awajan . The company has no any internal or external branches.

C-The accumulated capital investment at the end of the financial year is as follows:

JD
1- Investments (shares and bonds) - 44,_55,267
2 -Lands 96,344
3 —Buildings, machinery, furniture, tools and supplies — at cost 4935312
4 .Current assets 11,357,588
Total 60,567,511

D- Number of employees of Jordan Worsted Mills Co. Ltd.: 8
E - Company Address: -

PO Box 6060 Amman 11118 Jordan

Phone: 053743428 Fax 053744913

E-mail: Info@jordanworsted com

Website: https://www.jowm-jo.com




2 — Subsidiaries: - (Jordan Fabric and worsted manufacturing Company plc)

A- capital: Ten million Jordanian dinars.

B- Our company owns 80% of the capital, while Kingdom Investment Group Company
Limited Liability owns 20%.

C- The nature of its work and the scope of its activities.

Manufacture and production of fabrics, yarns, textiles and related accessories, as well as
manufacturing and sewing ready-to-wear garments of all kinds and their uses and trading in all of
the aforementioned, and to establish, build, buy, sell, rent, rent and manage a factory or factories
to make what is provided, and it invests and disposes of its money that it does not need

immediately for its work in exchange for financial bonds and / or as decide from time to time .
D - The number of employees and workers of the subsidiary company is 27

E — Geographical location: - The location of the subsidiary company is 7 King Hussein Street,

Rusaifa — Awajan.

F - There are no branches for the subsidiary.

G — There are no projects owned by the subsidiary,

H- There is no other information related to the subsidiary.
I- Company address- :

P.Q) Box 6060 Amman 11118 Jordan

Phone: 05/ 3743428 Fax: 05/ 3744913

Email; info@worstedfabric.com

Website: - jowm-jo.com

~10-



3-A - The names of the members of the Board of Directors and a brief intraduction zbout each of them :-

Name

Nationality

Position

Membership
Date

T
i

Date of Birth

Qualification

GraduationYear

Practical experience and membership of corporate boards

Imad Yousef Issa Mouasher

Muasher Investment &Trading Co

Jerdanian

Chairmtan

2BI0GI2C20

21/09/1957

BA Of Economic

MA Of International
Business Administration

1979

1981

Chairman and General Manager of Moasher Investment and Trading Company from 1981 to date

Vice Chairman of the Arah International Hotels Company

Vice Chairman of the International Campany for Hotels and Commercial Markets

Member of the Board of Directors of Jordan Ahli Bank

Nadim Yousef issa Muasher

Ranco Diversified Investments

Jordanian

Deputy Of
Chairman

28106/2020

071081950

HA OF Architectural
Engineering

MA Of Engineering [
Stanford University

1973

1974

Chaimman of the Board of Directors of Al-Zay Readymade Garments Manufacturing

Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Intemational Company for Hotels and Gommercial
Markets

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Arab International Hote!s

Chairman of the Board of Directars of the Jordanian Cormpany for Hotel and Tourism Education
Member of the Board of Diirectors of Jordan Ahli Bank

Member of the National Council for Tourism

Former member of the Senate

46 years of experience in industry, tourism and banking

Samir Odtaalla Dakhlalz Alamat

Jordanian

General Manager

28/06/2020

1810611842

84 Of Accounting

1978

Member of the Board of Directors of Al Zay Ready Garments Manufacturing
Member of the Board of Directars of the International Company for Hotels and Commercial
Markets

Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Imternational Hotels
Saba & Co. from 1/7/1963 - 1/511964
Legal Auditor

General Manager of Jordan Warsted Mitls Co from 1/5/1964 till now

Jack Nicola Yacoul Kattan

Jordanian

Member

2840612020

14/02/1948

BAOF Economic

MA Of Economic

PhD Of Economic

1969

1974

1976

irectors of Tie International Company for Hotels and Commercial

Board Member of Tourism Business Company

Member of the Board of Directors of Al Zay Ready Garments Manufacturing
Board Member of Masafat Specialized Transport Company

Central Bank of Jordan from 197¢ to 1972

Kuwait Investrnent Campany from 1976 to 1990

Jordan Ahli Bank  Deputy General Manager from 1981-2002

Jordan Investor Center Company ! General Manager from 2002 to date

Basim Jamil Issa Al-Mouasher

Suhail Jamil Al Muasher & Brathers Co,

Jordaniar

Member

28/06i2020

2016611958

BA of Business
Administration

1979

Chairman of Leading Business & Projects Company

Chairman of Henkel Jordan

Member of the Board of Directors of Arab International Hotels

Chirman of the Board of Ready Mix Concrete and Censtruction Supplies

Vice Chairman of the Board of Oirectors of the International Brokerage and Financial Markets
Company

1



Membership

Sacial security corporation

To 15142020

Name Natienality Pasition Date Date of Birth Qualification GraduationYear Practical experience and membership of corporate boards
Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher Jordanian Member 2E/08/2020 26/08/1974 |BA of Law 1998 Membher of the Board of Directors of the Arzb International Hotels Company from 24/4/2012
Rajai Muasher & Brothers Co Ahli Bank from /611999 to 1/5/2000
National Commaercial Centers from 2000/2/1 to 30/6/2008
Jordan Vailey Company from 01/11/2008 (o date
Nagzih Salah Attailah Sehaimat Jardanian 300352016 031111942 [textile engineering 1968 Member of the Board of Directors of the Arab Insurance Company / Jerdan
Consuitant For
Devalopment Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Zay Readymade Garments Manufacturing Company
and public senior management
Raleaticn course 1588 Manager of blanksts and tents factory / Army from 10/7/1973 to 1/3/1990
Director of Logistics f Army from 1/3/1990 tc 57/1994
Jordan Worsted Mils Company from 1984 to 28i6/2020
Diploma in Business
Issam Ali Suleiman Balbaisi Jordanian Mamber 284062020 24/05/1945 'Management 19711 Vice Chairman of the Board of the Jordanian Tanning Company 1982 - 2013
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Jordan Tobacco and Cigarettes Company 1990-1999
Member of the Board of Directors of the Jordanian Printing and Packaging Company 1989 - 1989
Membar of the Board of Directors of the International Company for Leathar Products 1982 - 1990
Ahmad Awad Abd Ai Haiim Al-Hussein Jerdanian Membar 2810612020 161711966 1987 Bank of Jordan from 1989 - 1991
BA Of Business and
Ahli Bank Economics 1993 Cairo Amman Bank from 1991 - 1584
MA Of finance 2005 Arab Barrk from 1334 - 2015
PhD Of finance Chairman of the Mational Campany for the develepment and financing of small projects
Vice Chairman of Al Ahli Finance Leasing
Deputy CEQ / General Manager of Jordan Ahli Bank from 10/11/201§ to date
- . Member
Walid Mohammad Khader Hashem Jordanian 2810672020 251071958 1981
BA Of Business and
Arab Bank Economics Arab Bank - different sections of the bank from 1983 - 1987
Arab Bank - Department of Banking Facilities from 1384 - 1999 from the Facility Officer to the
Facility Manager
Arab Bank - Branch Manager 2000 - 2004
Arab Bank - General Administration - Credit Manager from 2005 to 2009/4
Arab Bank - Public Administration - Director of the Major Companies Unit - Jordan and
Falestineg Irom 5/5/2009 to date
Deputy General Manager of National Leasing Company {Member of Arab Bank Group) frem
1112041 - 812012
Deputy Genaral Manager of National Leasing Company (Membar of Arabk Bank Group) from
%2012 to date
BA Banking and Financial Membar of the
Mohammad Shareef Mohammad Al zubi Jordanian Membar 168/01/2019 16M10/1963 |Sciences 1887 10/01/2009 anc 18/2/2018 - 16/1/2019

Member of the 8oard of Directors of Jordan International Investment Company from 15/2/2010 -
15/972010

Member of the Board of Directors of the Arab Center for Pharmaceutical industries from
01/09/2011 - 0171442015

Member of the Board of Directors of the Intermnational Company for Hotels and Commercial
Markets from t8M11/2018 to 18/18/2015

General Organization for Social Security Assistant Director General from 01/11/1990 to date
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Membership

Name Nationality Position Date Date of Birth Qualification GraduationYear Practical experience and membership of corporate boards
Abadrabeh mohammad Abedrabah Jordanian Memher 28/0612020 16/05/1882 |BA in Law 1986 Meamber of the Board of Directors of the Tourism Davelapment and Projects Company from 2016
Athabashneh  From 16/1/2020 Social Security Corperation / Director of the Office of Legal Affairs
Director of the Control Department | Assistant General Director for Administrative Affairs
Social security corporation Assistant General Managsr for ranches Affairs to date
. o Member BA in Laws . ) ) ) i i
Shaman Abdel Majid Al Majali Jordanian 28/06/2030 D5/08/1972 2000 Director of Legal Affairs and Affairs - the Social Security Corporation
MA in Laws
From 10/11/2018% From 93/199%6 to date
Head of the Treasury Department - Social Security Fund Investment Fund from 6/5/2009 to date
Ahmad Zakaria Darwish Al-Bwaliz Jordanian Member 02612019 26/04/1963 |BA Of Statistics 1987 Commander of Military Consumer Establishment wareh
Kingdom Investment Group Co Head of Logistics Division - Defense Purchasing Directorate
to 28/6/2020 Retired Colonel / Jordanian Armed Forces from 26/2/1988 - 21/2017
Bassam Farah Sulieman Maayeh Jordanian Memnber 28/06:2020 25/081947 |BA of Computer Science General Manager of the Arab Intermational Hotels Company since 2003
Biritish Universities
General Manager of the Tourist Businass Company from 1986
Engingering from the
ieivarite nf Galfred 110 Partner Director of Shair & Co. for Investments 19768 - 1996
University of Salford, UK
Rovyal Scientific Sociaty 19751976
Member of the Board of Directors of the International Company for Hotels and Commercial Mark:
Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Zay Readymade Garment Industry
of the Board of Directors of the Arab Intemational Hotels Company
. . BRTOYTEF Director of the Engineering Department of the Emirates Telecommunications Company, 1975 -
Marwan Suleiman Salern Zawaydeh Jordanian Member 280642020 Q305/1856 |Communications 2004
Chief Executive Cfficer / Pakistan Telecom 2004 - 2008
Chief Executive Officer Vettel Company - Jordan from 2003-2009
Chief Executive of Engineering and Information Technology, Etisalat UAE 2008-2014
Member of the Board of Directors of the Arab Insurance Company from 5/2020 to date
3-b - the names and ranks of senior management and a brief profile of each of them :-
Name Nationality Position Umm_cuh_ﬁna»_o_._ Date of Birth Qualification GraduationYaar Practical experience
Farajallah Jubrail Tawfik Qubain Jordanian Financial 19/06/1976 011271948 1976 Accountant at the Commercial Markets Directorate from 8/1211970-2161972
Manager B.A. Political Science
Economics Employee of Grindlays Bank from 17/2/1973 to 18/6/1976
Jordan Worsted Mills Co from 19/6/1976 to date
Samer suleiman Farhan Bawwab Jordanian Head of 2311011984 171111960 1982 Accountant at Jordan Worsted Mills Co . from 23/10/1934 - 1/2/2009
Accounting and Qiplema in Banking
Sharehoiders Sciences Head of Accounting and Sharehalders Worsted Mills Ca from 1/2/1/2009 te date
Department
Abdaltah Moh'd Khalid Al kordi Jordanian |Internal Auditor 01/09/1988 D9/04/1957 High School 1976 Accountant at Jordan Worsted Mills Co from 1979/09/11 to 1982/09/21

Accountant at Gtaishan Company / Saudi Arabia

Accountant for Jordan Worsted Mills Co from 1989/09/01 - 31122014

Internal Auditor at Jordan Worst Mills Co From 1/1/2015 to date

13



3-C

1 -The Board of Directors was elected on 28/6/2020

2-

The term of the Board of Directors is four years

3— The Main Company's Board of Directors holding during the fiscal year 2020 (six sessions)

4 -The Board of Directors of the Subsidiary Company holding during the fiscal year 2020 (six sessions)

4 - Statemient of the names of the major shareholders who own shares of 5% or more of the company's

capital
Name 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 ]
Number percentage Number percentage
of Shares of Shares
Messrs. Nadim Yousef Muasher and 3081354 | 20,542% 3081354 | 20.542%
Muasher family
 Messrs. Social Security Corporation 3000000 | 20,000% | 3000000 20,000%
 Messrs. Ahli Bank 1497000 9,980% 1497000 9,980%
Messrs. Arab Bank 1403746 9.358% 1403746 9,358%
Messrs Arab International Hotels 904064 6.027% 904751 6,031%
Messrs. Jordan Investor Center Co 1239085 8,260% 1239085 8,260%

3 —-Competitive status of the company:

The textile industry in general is facing very big competition in the global markets, especially by China and
India, but our company relies on its production on adhering to the full specifications in the implementation
of its contracts, which depend on good quality and maintained on an ongoing basis and this is what makes
it able to compete in this field . Note that most of our production is marketed to the Jordanian Armed Forces.
the Royal Jordanian Air Force, the General Security Directorate, the Civil Defense Directorate and the

General Directorate of the Gendarmerie Forces. Our sales to the local markets this year amounted 4,855,119

JOD, compared to 6,331,274 JOD in the previous year.

6 — A — The degree of dependence on key customers, which constitute 10% of the total sales or

revenues: — Not exist

6 — B -The degree of dependence on major customers constituting 10% of all sales: —

Forces, General Security Directorate, Royal Jordanian Air

Force, Civil Defense Directorate, General Directorate of the

Gendarmerie Forces)

No Name Dealing percentage
from total sales or
company revenue

1- | Sales of military fabrics {General Command of the Armed 99 986%

—14-



7- The company enjoys the customs protection imposed on imported fabrics, which is 16 % Sales tax on wool and wool
blended and synthetic fabrics. Our company does not have any patents or franchise rights and does not enjoy privileges for
any of its products.

8- Decisions issued by the govermment or international organizations or others that have a material impact on the work of
the company or its products or competitiveness and the application of the company te international quality standards: -
A- There are no decisions to date issued by the government or international organizations or others that have a material
itmpact on the company's work, products or coripetitiveness during the year 2019 except as mentioned in the previous
report which is as shown below: —:

1- On 10/8/2017, our company received a letter from the procurement directorate of the General Command of the Armed
Forces — Arab Army stating the non-renewal of the agreement concerning the purchase of fabrics from the subsidiary
company (Jordan Fabrics and Worsted Manufacturing Company) after 2020

2- The General Comumnand of the Jordanian Armed Forces —Arab Army announced in the local newspapers their desire to
establish a strategic partnership to establish a factory for military clothing and equipment. Our company (the subsidiary
Company) contributed to applying for this partnership, and information required in this regard were presented, but they set
very difficult conditions. which our subsidiary company did not agree to.

3- Regarding the decision of the Jordanian Arined Forces — The Arab Army not to renew the agreement regarding the
purchase of miilitary fabrics from our subsidiary (the Jordan worsted and manufacturing co Ple) after 2020. The company
made several attempts with the Jordanian Armed Forces — the Arab Army to re—operate the previous agreemnent, which
enables the company te conduct its business comnpletely in terms of purchasing yarn in the appropriate titnes, coloring,
shipping and inanufacturing, which guarantees the factory's work without stopping, as well as fulfilling the comnpany's
cotmitiment in termns of delivery of contracted fabrics It has the same conditions, prices and required specifications, and at
the appropriate agreed tiines. Unfortunately, the Jordanian Armed Forces — the Arab Army informed our afliliate company
that they did not agree to extend the agreement for a period of time that would enable continuity of work in the company.
Based on the above, production at the factory was halted in January 2020, and the excess workers were laid off with paid all
their dues and rewards due to them.

4- A-The company will continue to deliver the balances of the fabrics proven and required under the above agreement to
all parties and in the specified deadlines agreed upon as the comnpany will follow up on its investments to obrain the best
rerurn.

B- The company conducted periodic inspectiou of its products in the company's laboratory, and the company also
sometinies sends samiples of production to international laboratories for the purpose of applying the quality standards of its
various products, in addition to the tests that are constantly carried out by laboratories of the Jordanian Armed Forces.

9 - A- APPOINTMENT POLICY: Appointment procedures are adopted on the basis of scientific certificates, experience
and competence in the field of work required through requests for employinent or advertisement in local newspapers.

9-B-The number of employees of the comipany and their qualifications:

WQu'ﬁliﬁcation Jordan worsted mills Co Jordan Fabric and worsted ]
(parent company) manufacturing Co. PLC
' BA 3 3
bip]onm 2 2
High school 7
Less than secondary - 15
Total Number of employees 8 27

9-C — Rehabilitation and training programs for employees of the company and the subsidiary during 2020

First: - Main Comipany. —

There were ne qualification or rraining programs during the year, where all employees are qualified and well experienced.

Second: The subsidiary company: No training was conducted during the year due to the factory ceasing production in

January of this year and the layoft of the excess workers in the company according to that.

-15-




9-D - Organizational chart - Main Company
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9-E
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10- Risks that may be exposed to the company: —

Theft, fire, earthquakes, floods, aircraft crashes, any natural disasters) and risks (political unrest) )
are all covered under comprehensive insurance policy. The factory is also equipped with early

warning and firefighting equipment according to the requirements of Civil Defense.
11-Achievements and Events .-
First: Achievements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows: —

JD
Annual sales 4,855,119
Annual net profit
A- Net profit after tax 448 457
B- Netinvestment and other income 1,175,267

Total 1,623,724

C- Profits proposed for distribution to shareholders JOD 2,1 million (Only Two million One

hundred thousand) at a rate of 14% of the nominal value of shares.

Second; - Events: None

12— Financial implications of operations of a non-recurrent nature: - There is no financial irnpact of
operations of a non-recurring nature that occurred during the financial year and do not fall within the

main activity of the company except as mentioned in Item (8A) paragraph (1-4)

13- A-Realized profits and dividends attributable to shareholders resulting from local sales and investment

profits were as follows: -

Shareholders' equity 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Paid-Up Capital 15000000 15000000 15000000 15000000 15000000
Realized profit 4798883 4399603 4193459 3608789 1674726
Distributed profits 3750000 3375000 3375000 2700000 2100000
Profit distribution ratio %625 %225 %225 %18 %14

i Free stock distributed ~ - - - -

-18-



13-B-The shareholders' equity at the end of each of the years was as follows: -

Shareholders 'equity 2006 | 2017 2018 2019 2020
Paid up Capital 15000000 | 15000000 | 15000000 | 15000000 | 15000000
Additional Paid in capital 50000 50000 50000 50000 50000
| Yarn rising prices reserve 2000000 | 2000000 | 2000000 2000000 -
Statutory reserve 12532243 | 12532243 | 12532243 | 12532243 | 12532243
Voluntary reserve 10000000 | 10000000 100600000 10000000 | 10000000
Special reserve 7333000 7333000 7333000 73330000 | 7333000
Distributed earnings 3750000 | 3375000 | 3375000 2700000 | 2100000
Investment valuation reserve 8099525 | 6408325 | 3628610 381705 | (6826043)
- Retained earnings 8965333 9041813 9149782 9319022 | 10522677
' Total of Shareholders 'equity 67730101 | 65740381 | 63068635 59315970 | 50711877

Stock prices 3,970 3.360 3,000 2,300 2.050

14— Analysis of the Company’s financial position and results during the financial year: —

No Financial ratios 31/12/2019 31/12/2020
1 Earnings per share -191]. D -,087]. D
2 Return on paid up capital %19,1 %8.7
3 Return on equity % 4,83 %2,57
4 Return on assets %43 %2,33
5 Dividend payout ratio to paid up capital %18 %14
6 Revenue of the stock 9,78 %6,82
7 ratio of market value to book value %58.16 %60,65

15— l)evelopr;{énts and future plan: -

1- The company will follow up all efforts necessary to obtain the best return on its investments.

2- The subsidiary company will implement all its obligations towards our Jordanian armed forces

and other security services to provide them with the balance of their confirmed requests for

fabrics according to the concluded agreement.

3- Follow up any opportunities to operate the subsidiary's factory with any internal or external

parties as well as obtaining the best return on investments.

16— The auditors’ fees for 2020 were as follows: —

Audit fees for the accounts of Jordan Worsted mills Co

Audit Fees for the Accounts of Jordan Fabrics and Worsted Manufacturing Co

-19-
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-17-A The number of shares owned by the Board of Directors:—

i Number of Number of
shares of board | shares of board
No Name of the Board Member Position Nationality members and members and
their their
representatives | representatives
31/12/2019 31/12/2020
1 Muasher Investment & Trading Co Chairman of Board 165983 165985
Imad Yousef Issa Al-Mouasher Co of Directors Jordanian 533802 533802
2 Ranco Diversitied Investments LLC Deputy Chairman of . 431831 431831
MNadim Yousef Issa Al-Muasher the Board Directors Jordanian 034750 534750
Member /| General 10000 10000
3 Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat Jordanian
Manager
Rajai Muasher &Brothers Co Member 400 400
4 o Jordanian
Saleh Rajaei Saleh Al-Muasher - 42148
5 $Social Security corporation Member Jordanian 3000000 3000000
Shaman Abdel Majid Salim Al Majali Jordanian -
Moh'd Shareef Mohammad Alzu'bi
to 15/1/2020 -
6 Abedraboh moharmimad abedrboh Jordanian
alhabashneh -
From 16/1/2020
7 | Ahli Bank Member Jordanian 1497000 1497000
Dr.Ahmad Awad Abed AlHaliim-Hussien Jordanian - -
'8 | Arab Bank Member Jordanian 1403746 1403746
Walid Mol d Khader Hashem Jordanian -
9 Suhail Jamil Al-Muasher &Brothers Co Member Jordanian 2404 2404
Basim Jamil Issa Al-Muasher Jordanian 1437 1437
10 | Nazih Salah Attallah Sehaimat to 28/6/2020 Member Jordanian 7124 7124
1 Dr. Jack Nicola Yacoub kattan Member Jordanian 58810 58810
Kingdom Investment Group Co Member Jordanian 1500 1500
12 Ahmad Z D Al-Bwaliz Jordanian - -
13 | Issam Ali Suleiman Al-Bilbeisi Member Jordanian 382000 403677
14 Bassam Farah Sulieman Maayeh Member Jordanian - 400
From 28/6/2020
Marwan Suleiman Salem» Zawaydeh Member Jordanian - 1000
1 From 28/6/2020
Total 8130789 8096414
There are no contributions in companies controlled by members of the Board of Directors
17- B- shares owned by senior management: —
Number of | Number
No Name Positicn Nationality shares of shares
¢ 3111242019 | 31/12/2020
E 1 Farajal.i'ah jubrail Tawfik Qubain Financial Manager Jordanian - -
T T T Ht;;‘l_;f'Accounting and o - -
2 Samer Suleiman Farhan Bawwab Jordanian
Shareholders Departiment
3 Abdallah Moh'd Khalid Mohyi Aldin AL Internal Auditor Jordanian - -

Kurdi

There are no contributions in companies controlled by senior management personnel
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17-C The number of shares owned by the relatives of the directors and senior management: -

Number of Nunvber of
No Nare Position Nartionality shares shares
3111272019 31/12/2020
1 Imad YousefIssa Al-Mouasher Representative Jordanian
MNadin wadia Khalil lialasa wife - -
2 Nadin Yousef [ssa Al-Muasher Representative Jordanian
Rania [ssa inbada dallal wife 17750 17750
3 Samir Qdtaallah Dakhlala Alamat Member Jordanian
Ritiia Khataf Mansonr Qishan Wife 12000 12000
4 Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher Represenrative Jordanian
Nataly Michel Tawfiq Ayoub Wife - -
Rajaei Son - -
Sirin Daugliter - -
Mona Daughter - -
5 Moli'd Shareef Mohairunad T Alzu'bi to15/1/2020 Representative
Mariatn Mubananad Salim Alzu'bi Wife Jordanian - -
3 Shaman Abdel Majid Saliim Al Majali Representative Jordanian
Khawla khilil abdelgader al nashash Wife
Apan Son - -
hainza Son
“‘I- - Abed rabo inohaimunad abed rabo alhabshneh Representative
Reetnt abdehaneed hushien tnubaideen - - B
wife
8 D Alunad Awad Abed AlHalitn-Hussien Representative Jordanian
Saiar o1mar Sulinsan al utaibe Wife - -
9 Walid Moh'd Khader Hashem Representative Jordanian
Khawla awad Muhananad asad Wife - -
Ahrmad son
10 Basiin Jamil Issa Al-Muasher Representative Jordanian
Ghada fawzi deeb aurunari Wife - -
n Nazih Salah Attallah Sehaiinat to 28/6/2020 Mernber Jordanian
Faila salii ahimad al atar Wife - -
12 Tor Jack Nicola Yacoub kattan Mermber Jordanian
Batrisha games gatnies kenady Wife 75000 75000
13 Ahmad Zakaria Darwish Al-Bwaliz Representative Jordanian
Suad fawwaz Sulitan ab Saleem Wife - -
Anas son
14 Issam AL Suleiinan Al-Bilbeisi Member Jordanian
Fareedeh fareed ainin jwaihan wife 1054 1054
15 Bassam Farah Sulieman Maayeh From 28:6/2020 Member Jordanian
Aida Fuad Awad Mansour wife
16 Marwan Suleiman Salem Zawaydeh From 28/6/2020 Mertber Jordanian -
Athina Saimel Eshaq Alfarah wife - -
17 Farajallah jubrail Tawfik Qubain - - - -
18 Sainer Suletiman Farhan Bawwab - - - -
19 | Abdallah Molvd Khalid AL Kurdi
Najwa molatitunad Salammeh al aionr wife Jordanian - -
Toral 105804 105804

There are no contributions in companies controlled by relatives of members of the Board of Directors and relatives of senior management

employees
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18- A-Benefits and rewards enjoyed by both the Chairman and the members of the Board of Directors

{(Parent company)

No position Annual Annual Annual Annual Total
Name salaries | transportation | bonuses travel annual
allowance expenses benefits
1 | Muasher Investment & Trading Co chairman - 4800 5000 - 9800
Imad Yousef Issa Mouasher
2 Ranco Multiple Investments Depury of - 4800 5000 - 9800
Nadim Yousef'Issa Muasher Chairman
|3 [ Samir Odeaalla Dakhlala Alamat General | 57000 4800 5000 66800
Manager
4  Rajai Muasher &Brothers Co Member - 4800 5000 - 9800
Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher
_ _. Social Security corporation Member * - 9600 10000 - 19600
| 5 | Representedby.
Shaman Abdel Majid Salimm Al Majali
6 A—- Moh'd Shareef Mohammad Alzu'bi
to 15/1/2020
C- Abedrabo Mchammad habashneh
from 16/1/2020
| 7 ; Suhail Jamil Al-Muasher &Brothers Co Member - 4800 5000 - 9800
' 'g Basim Jamil Issa Al-Mouasher
'8 | Nazih Salah Artallah Sehaimat 10 28/6/2020 | Member - 2400 5000 - 7400
9 IDr Jack Nicola Yacoub Kaét}il:l T Member - 4800 50410 B T T
10 Arab Bank Member - 4800 5000 - 9800
Waleed Mohammad Khader Hashem
11 Kingdom Investment Group- Member ** - 2400 5000 - 7400
Ahmad Z I Al-Bwaliz to 28/6/2020
12 | Ahli Bank Member - 4800 5000 - 9800
D Ahmad Awad Abed Al Halim Al-Hussien
13 | Issam Ali Suleiman Al-Belbesi Member - 4800 5000 - 9800
from28/6/2020
14 | Bassam Farah Sulieman Maayeh from Member - 2400 - 2400
28642020
15 | Marwan Suleiman Saliem Zwaydeh Member - 2400 - 2400
' Total 57000 62400 65000 - 184400

1- 50000 ]J.D Paid to Chairman of Board of Directors for representation allowance

* The annual allowance and gratuity allowance are paid directly to the Social Security Corporation.

** The annual allowance and gratuity allowance are paid directly to the kingdom investment group.
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18- B- Benefits and rewards for senior management (The parent company)

No Narmne Position Total Annual Annual | Annual Total
annual | transportation | bonuses | travel annual
salaries allowance expense | benefits

1 | Farajallah jubrail Tawfik Qubain Financial | 10200 - - - 10200

manager

2 | Samer Suleiman Farhan Bawwab Head of 1860 - - -~ 1860

Accounting
and
Shareholders
Department
3 | Abdallah Moh'd Khalid AL Kurdi Internal 1860 - - - 1860 |
Auditor
Total 13920 - . . 13920

18- C Benefits and rewards of the Chairman and members of the Board of Directors (sx.tbsi&ié;jf company)

No ‘ Name position Total Annual Annual Total
! annual | transportation | bonuses | annual
salaries allowance benefits
1 Irmad YousefIssa Mouasher chairman - 4800 5000 9800
2 | Nadim Yousef Issa Muasher Deputy of - 4800 5000 9800
Chairman
G 1
3 Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat * enera 284578 4800 3000 294378
Manager
T Meinb
4 Nazih Salah Attallah Sehaimat sHher 81103 4800 5000 20903
5 Dr.Jack Nicola Yaconb Kattan Member — 4800 5000 9800
Memb -
6 Kingdom Investment Group ** s 4800 5000 9800
Represented: -
Brigadier—General Mahmoud Darwish
alsawaear
7 . . . ok Member - 4800 5000 9800
Social Securiry corporation N
Represented by:
A- Mol'd Shareef Mohammad Alzu’bi
Teo13/1/2020
B- Abedraboh Mohammad Abedraboh
Habashneh from 16/1,2020c0 31/7/2020
C~ Shaman Abdel Majid Salirvu Al Majali
From 1/8;2020
l Total 365681 33600 35000 434281

1- 75000 ].D Paid to Chairman of Board of Directors for representation allowance

2- A car is allocated for the use of the general manager, as well as a car for the consultant for development

and public relations until the end of his work with company on 20/1/2020.

Company.

*The above amount includes the salaries of six months bonus, paid to all employees of the company whose

services have been terminated and who They are still working due to the factory being halted in

production, according to a collective work contract and the approval of the Board of Directors.
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** The annual transportation allowance and bonuses are paid directly to the Kingdom Investment
***The annual transportation allowance and bonuses are paid directly to the Social Security Corporation.

Group 18- D- Benefits and rewards of senior management (subsidiary)

NO|  Name Position Total Annual | Annual Total
annual transportation | bonuses annual
salaries allowance benefit

1 Farajallah jubrail Financial manager 67144 - - 67144 *
Tawltik Qubain

‘ 2 Samer Suleiman Head of Accounting and 27771 - — 27771+
Farhan Bawwab Shareholders Department
"3 | Abdallah Moh'd Internal Auditor 26603 . - 26603 ©
i Khalid AL Kurdi
|

_ Total 121518 - - 121518

* The above amount includes the salaries of six months bonus, paid to all employees of the company
whose services have been terminated and who are still at work due to the factory ceasing production and
according to a collective work contract and the approval of the Board of Directors.

19— Donations

No i Details J.D
1 | Public Security Directorate [ fees for students on scholarships to the University College 6388

! of Jordan for tourist hotel education
2 ! Witlgs of Hope Society * 52000
3 b Naua Company for Sustainable Development 20000
4 Cancer patients /| Lebanon 3606
Total 81994

The company donated to charitable societies in Zarqa and Russeifa, and to other entities with in-kind itemns

produced by the company, especially during the holy Ramadan,

*Despite the epidemiological situation that befell the world and Jordan in the year 2020 in which the

Wings of Hope Society was forced to cancel or postpone all student activities and events organized and
implemented by the association including sports, cultural, heritage and other programs that require
gatherings, the association reconsidered the programs and activities of the association that had previously
approved and transferred the programs And the budget allocated for the year 2020 to help face the
consequences of the epidemiological situation and the economic situation that affected the Jordanian
society. and for this reason the allocations to support programs and activities have been redirected to items
of greater priority under the current circumstances, such as support for education and payment of tuition
installments for outstanding students whose families have suffered from financial hardship. Because of the

repercussions of the pandemic on businesses, jobs, support for the health sector
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orphan centers, a number of people with special needs, and providing food parcels to needy families, we
were able to reach in these prograins a number of Jordanian governorates and villages.

Among the most prominent projects implemented during this year is the rehabilitation of a multi-purpose
hall in the building of the Jordanian Society for the Prevention of Road Accidents to be a headquarters for
implementing programs, activities and seminars that are prepared by specialists to educate young people

and children on everything related to road use, traffic safety and ethics of vehicle driving.

The association pays special attention to the issue of traffic safety and the need to work to protect the
Jordanian society from traffic disasters that afflict our society greatly, and the work has ended in equipping
this hall. which was decorated with artworks on its walls by Jordanian artists, to give a positive spirit to the
place. Reception of student and youth groups will begin when student gatherings and activities are permitted
and Road Safety Ambassadors programs are implemented. This hall was inaugurated under the name
"Ayman Moasher Hall" on 20/12/2020,

20 - There are no contracts, projects, or affiliations contracted by the company with sister companies, or
subsidiary. or affiliate companies, or with the chairman, members of the board, or the general manager, or
any employee of the company or their relatives,
21- A - The company contributes to protecting the environment and serving the local community by its
commitment to apply the prevailing laws and instructions in Jordan related to the environment, as it is
committed to an annual contract with the Russeifa municipality to transport waste, as well as selling solid
Waste such as cardboard and plastic to other bodies that recycle it .

The water is also discharged to the sewage networks directly with the approval of the official authorities.

B- The company trains some male and female students from universities, community colleges and industrial

institutes in accounting, secretarial and industrial vocational training
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C- The required declarations

1- The Board of Directors declares that there are no material matters that may affect the continuity of the

company during the following fiscal year.

2- The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial statements and

providing an effective control system in the company.

Mr. Emad Yousef Issa Muasher
Chairman of the Board of Directors
A representative of Moasher Investment

and Trade Company

Mr. Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat

General Manager

Mr. Ahimed Zakaria Darwish Al-Bwaliz,
A representative of Kingdom Investment,

Group Company
Mr. Basimn Jamil Issa Al Muasher
representative of the Suhail Jamil Al Muasher

and Brothers Company

Mr. Nazih Salah Atallah Al Suhaimat,

Mr. Issam Ali Suleiman Al-Balbisi

Mr. Marwan Suleiman Saliem Zwaydeh

Social Security Corporation representatives

Mr, Abdrabuh Muhammad Abdrabuh Habashneh

Mr. Nadim Yousef Issa Muasher
Deputy Chairman of the Board of Director
A representative of Ranco Diversified

Investments Company

Mr. Walid Muhammad Khader Hashemn

Arab Bank Representative

Dr. Ahmed Awad Abdel Halim Al-Hussein

A representative of the Jordan Ahli Bank

Mr. Salih Rajai Salih Al Muasher
representative Rajaei Al Muasher and Brothers

Company

Dr Jack Nicola Yaqoub kattan

Mr. Bassam Farah Sulieman Maayeh

Mr. Shaman Abdul Majeed Salim Al Majali

3- We, the undersigned. acknowledge the correctness and accuracy of the information and data provided

in this annual report.

Emad Yousef Issa Mouasher
Chairman of the Board director
representative of Moasher Investment

and Trade Company

General Manager

Samir Qdtaalla Dakhlala Alamat  Farajallah Gubrail Qubain

Financial Manager



22~ According to the provisions of Article No. (17) of the Corporate Governance Instructions listed for the year 2017,
we show the followings: -
A- After the Board of Directors reviewed the instructions of the corporate governance of the listed joint stock
companies for the year 2017 and their requirerents, all necessary measures were taken to implement these instructions
such as completing the formation of committees, holding its meetings, discussing its decisions, as well as what related
to the meetings of the board of directors, general assembly meetings and other requirements.

In addition, a new board of directors was elected at the meeting of the General Assembly of shareholders held on

28/6/2020, consisting of thirteen members, including six independent members.

B- The names of the current and resigned members of the Board of Directors during the year 2020

1- Messrs. Moasher Investment and Trade company not executive / not—independent
represented by Mr. Imad Yousef Issa Mouasher

2~ Messrs.. Ranco Diversified Investments Company, not-executive / not-independent
represented by Mr. Nadim Yousef Issa Muasher

3- Messrs., the Social Security Corporation not-executive / not—independent

represented by:

A - Mr. Shaman Abdul Majeed Salim Al-Majali

4- Messrs. the Social Security Corporation not-executive / not-independent

represented by: -

A- Mr. Muhammad Sharif Muhammad Tawfig Al-Zoubi to 15/1/2020
B —Mr.Abedraboh Mohammad Abedraboh Habashneh from 16/1/2020
5-— Messrs., Jordan Ahli Bank not-executive [ not independent

represented by Dr. Ahmad Awad Abdel Halim Al-Hussein

6— Messrs. Arab Bank not-executive / non-independent
represented by Mr. Walid Muhammad Khader Hashem

7- Messrs. Rajaei Al Muasher and Brothers Company not-executive / independent
represented by Mr. Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher

8- Messrs. Suhail Jamil Al Muasher and Brothers Company not—executive / independent
represented by Mr. Basim Jamil Issa Muasher

9- The Kingdom Investment Group Company not—-executive [ not—-independent

represented by Mr. Ahmed Zakaria Darwesh Albwaliz to 28/6/2020

10— Mr. Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat General manager Executive { not independent
11- Dt Jack Nicola Yaqoub kattan not-executive/ independent
12 - Mr. Nazih Salah Atallah Al-Sehaimat to 28/6/2020 executive / not-Independent
13— Mr. Issam Ali Suleiman Al-Bilbeisi not-executive / independent
14— Mr. Bassarn Farah Suleiman Maayeh from 28/6/2020 not—executive / independent
15— Mr. Marwan Suleiman Salem Zawaydeh from 28/6/2020 not-executive { independent

Note that there are no resigned members during the year 2020,
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C- The names of the representatives of the legal board members.
1- Messrs Moasher Investment and Trade Company

represented by Mr. Imad Yousef Issa Muasher Chairman of the Board of Directors,
nof-executive / not-independent
2~ Messrs. Ranco Diversified Investments Company

Itis represented by Mr. Nadim Yusuf Issa Muasher - Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

not-executive / not-independent
3~ Messrs. Social Security Corporation and represents by -
A - Mr. Shaman Abdul Majeed Salim Al Majali - not-executive / not-independent
B- Mr. Muhammad Sharif Muhammad Tawfig Al-Zoubi to 15/1/2020 not-executive / not-independent
C- Mr Abedraboh Mohammad Abedraboh Habashneh from 16/1/2020 not-executive / not-independent
4— Messrs., Jordan Ahli Bank

Represented by -

Dr. Ahmed Awad Abdel-Halim Al-Hussein, not-executive / not-independent
5- Messrs. Arab Bank :—
represented by Mr. Walid Muhaimmad Khader Hashem, not-executive / not-independent

6- Messrs. Rajaei Al Muasher and Brothers Company

Represented by Mr. Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher not-Executive [ Independent
7- Messrs. Suhail Jamil Al Muasher and Brothers Company
Represented by Mr. Bassemn Jameel Issa Muasher, not-executive { independent
8- Messrs., the Kingdom Investment Group Company not—executive / not-independent

represented by Mr. Ahmed Zakaria Darwish Al-Bwaliz to 28/6/2020
[D- The executive positions in the company and the names of the persons who occupy it: —
- General Manager: Mr. Samir QOdtaalla Dakhlala Alamat
2- Adviser for Development and Public Relations: Mr. Nazih Salah Atallah Al-Suhaimat to 20/1,2020
3- Financial Manager : Mr. Farajallah jubrail Tawfik Qubain
4- Internal Auditor: Mr. Abdullah Mohammed Khaled Al-Kurdi
5- Head of the Accounting and Shareholders Department: Mr. Samer Suleiman Farhan Bawwab
Ei- Memberships of Boards of Directors held by a member of the Board of Directors in public joint-stock companies: -
First: - Mr. [mad Yousef [ssa Muasher / Representative of Al Muasher Investment and Trade Company
1- Arab International Company for Hotels
2- International Company for Hotels and Malls
3~ Jordan Ahli Bank Company
Second: — Mr. Nadim Yousef Issa Muasher [ Representative of Ranco Multiple Investrnents Company
1- Al-Zay Ready Wear Manufacturing Company
2- International Company for Hotels and Malls
3— Arab International Company for Hotels
4~ Jordan Ahli Bank Company
Third: - Mr_ Samir Odtaalla Dakhiala Alamat
1- Al-Zay Ready Wear Manufacturing Comipany
2- International Company for Hotels and Malls
3~ Arab International Company for Hotels
Fourth - Dr. Jack Nicola Yaqoub kattan
1- International Company for Hotels and Malls

2- Al Zay Ready Wear Manufacturing Company

Fifth: — Mr. Basem Jamil Issa Muasher / Representative of the Suhail Jamil Al Muasher and Brothers Company
1- The Leading Company for Business and Projects

2- Arab International Hotels Company

Sixth: — Mr. Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher / Representative of Rajaei Al Muasher and Brothers Company

1- Arab International Company for Hotels

Seventh: — Mr. Nazih Salah Atallah Al-Suhaimat to 28/6/2020
1- Al-Zay Ready Wear Manufacturing Company
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F— The name of the Governance Liaison Officer: - Mr. Samer Suleiman Farhan Al-Bawwab
G- The names of the comnmittees emanating from the Board of Directors:
First: Four commirtees ererge from the Board of Directors according to the provisions of the corporate

governance instructions listed for the year 2017, and they are as follows: -

1- The Audit Committee

2~ The Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3~ The Governance Committee

4— The Risk Management Comumittee

Second: - In addition to two committees formed by the Board of Directors, as follows: -
1- The Investiments Comumittee
2- Land Sale Committee
H- The name of the Chairman and members of the Audit Committee and a surnmary of their qualifications and
experience: —
1- Suhail Jamil Muasher and Brothers Company — Chairman of the Comunittee (non-executive — independent)
Represented of Basim Jamil Issa Muasher .
Bachelor of Business Administration - Chairman of the Leading Company for Business and Projects
2- Issamn Al Suleiman Al-Bilbisi (not-executive — independent).
Diploma in Business Administration, Vice Chairman of the Jordanian Tanning Company 1982-2013, Vice Chairman
of the Jordanian Tobacco and Cigarettes Company 1990-1399.
3- Social Security Corporation - Member - (not-executive [ not—independent)

A- Represented by Mr. "Muhammad Sharif* Muhammad Tawfiq Al-Zu'bi to 15/1/2020

Bachelor's degree in financial and banking sciences - Assistant General Manager at the Social Security Corporation
from 1;11/1990 to date..

B- Represented by Mr. Abd Rabbo Muhammad Abd Rabbo Al-Habashneh - from 16/1/2020

Bachelor of Law — Director of Legal Affairs Cilice - Director of Control Department { Assistant

General Director for Administrative Affairs - Assistant General Manager for Branch Affairs.
4- Jordan Ahli Bank (non-executive / non-independent)
represented by Dr. Ahmed Awad Abdel Halim Al-Hussein
PhD in Finance - Work in the banking sector from 1989 to date. Senior vice president of the CEQ / General Manager
at Al Ahli Bank from 1/11/2015 and to date.
I- The name of the chairman and members of the Nomination and Remuneration Comumittee, the Governance
Committee and the Risk Management Committee: —

First: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which consists of the following:
1- Jack Nicola Yaqoub Kattan (not-executive / independent)
2— Mr. Marwan Suleiman Salem Zawaydeh - President (not—executive / independent)
3- The Social Security Corperation (not—executive /not independent)

Represented by Mr. Shaman Abdul Majeed Saliin Al Majali
second: - The Governance Committee, which consists of the followings: -
1- Bassamn Farah Suleiman Maayeh (not-executive / independent)
2- Mr. isam Ali Sulaeiman Bilbeisi (not-executive / independent)
3. Messrs. Rajaei Al Muasher and Brothers Company  { not-executive / independent)

represented by Mr. Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher

Third: The Risk Management Committee, which consists of the following
1- Marwan Suleiman Salem Zawaydeh (not—executive / independent)
2- Dr. Jack Nicola Yaqeub kattan (not executive / independent)

3- Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat (executive / not-independent)
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J- The number of perimanent conunittee meetings during the fiscal year 2020 with an indication of the mermbers present

First: — The Andit Cotimnittee: The committee held four meetings during the fiscal year 2020, as shown below: -

Naines the members of the Board of Directors

The date of the sessions during the year 2020

11 - February 7 - June 21 - July 19-Oct

Suhail Jamil Al-Muasher & Brothers Co

Basim Jamiil Issa Mouasher Presence Presence Presence Presence

Social Security Corporation

Abdrabuh Muhammad Abdrabuh Habashneh Presence Presence Presence Presence

From 16/1/2020

Ahli Bank

Dr. Ahmed Awad Abdel-Halini Al-Hussein Presance Presence Presence Presence
Issam Ali Suleitnan Al-Balbisi Presence Presence Presence Presence

Second: - Nomination and Rermuneration Committee: The cornmittee held two meetings during

the fiscal year 2020, as shown below: -

Name the members of the Board of Directors

The date of the sessions during the year 2020

22-July 16 Nov
-b_r._]ack Nicola Yaqoub kattan Presence Presence
Marwan Suleinian Salem Zawaydeh Presence Presence
" Social Security Corporation
5 Shaman Abdel Majid Al Majali Presence Presence Presence Presence

Third: - Governance Conunittee: The committee held two ineetings during the fiscal year 2020,

as shown below: ~

F

Naitie the members of the Board of Directors

The date of the sessions during the year 2020

. 22-July 16 Nov
I' Bassam Farah Sulierman Maayeh Presence Presence
I Rajai Mnuasher & Brothers Co

i Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher Presence Presence
i Issam Ali Suleiman Al-Belbesi Presence | | Presence

Fourth: - Risk Management Cotrmitiee: The conunittee held two meetings during the fiscal year

2020, as shown below: -

! Name the members of the Board of Directors

The date of the sessions during the year 2020

i 22-July 16 Nov
‘ Marwan Suleiman Salerns Zawaydeh Presence Presence
i Dr. Jack Nicola Yaqoub kattan Presence Presence

Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat Presence Presence

K - The number of meetings of the audit cormmittee with the auditor during the year: -

The Audit Conunittee led one meeting on 11/2/2020 with the external anditor of the company, Messrs. Deloitte & Touche
{Middle East) - Jordan. This meeting was attended by: — Basem Jamil Issa Al Muasher, representative of Suhail Jamil Al
Moasher & Brothers Company, Abd Rabbo Muhammad Abd Rabbo Al Habashneh Representative of the Social Security
Corporation, Dr. Ahmed Awad Abdel Halitn Al Hussein, representative of the National Bank of Jordan, and Issamn Ali

Suleiman Al-Belbeisi.
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The company's board of directors held six meetings during the fiscal year 2020, and the following is a

statement of the board members present for each meeting with the date of the session .-

The name of the members of the Board

The date of meetings during year 2020

of Directors 12FEB | 9JUNE | 29JUNE 22 JUL ISNOV | 2DEC
| Muasher Investment & Trading Co Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Imad Yousef Issa Mouasher
Ranco Diversified Investments LLC
Nadim Yousef Issa Muasher absence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Nazih Salah Attallah Sehaimat to 28/6/2020 | Presence | Presence - - - -
D Jack Nicola Yacoub kattan Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Ahli Bank
: D Ahmad Awad Abed AL Halim- Presence | Presence | Presence i Presence | Presence | Presence
Al-Hussein
: Arab Bank -
Walid Moh'd Khader Hashers Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Suhail Jamil Al-Muasher &Brothers Co
Basim Jamil Issa Muasher Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
.Vﬁajai Muasher &Brothers Co
Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher absence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Issam Ali Suleiman Al-Bilbeisi Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Kingdom Investmment Group o
Ahmad Z D Al-Bwaliz to 28/6/2020 Presence | Presence ) ) ) ;
Social Security Corporation
representatives: —
Moh'd Shareef Mohammad T Alzu'bi
To 15/1/2020
Shaman Abdel Majid Salim Al Majali Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Abedrabo Mohammad habashneh Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
From 16/1/2020
Bassarm Farah Suliemman Maayeh - - Presence | Presence | Presence { Presence
From 28/6/2020
Marwan Suleiman Salem Zawaydeh - - Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
: Fromm 28/6/2020

Imad Yousef Issa Mouasher

Chairman of Board of Directors

Rep Of Mouasher Investment & Trading Co
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Now that you have listened to the report of the Board of Directors, which was supported by the consolidated
financial statements for this year, we attribute to the General Assembly the approval of the following; -

1- Recitation of the proceedings of the previous session.

2- Discussing and approving the report of the Board of Directors and the future plan for 2021,

3- Hearing the company's auditors report on the financial statements for the year ending December 31,
2020, and approving it.

4- Discussing and approving the financial staterments,

5~ Approval of transferring the special reserve amounting to 7,333,000 dinars to the retained earnings.

6~ Approval of dividend distribution to shareholders at the rate of 14% of the nominal value of shares.

7- Hearing the report of the committees formed in accordance with the provisions of the Governance
Instructions for the listed joint stock companies for the year 2017.

B— Discharging the Board of Directors from liability for the year ending on Decermnber 31, 2020.

9 — Electing auditors for the company’s accounts for the fiscal year 2021 and determining their fees.

10- Any other matters that the general assembly proposes to be included on the agenda that fall within the
scope of the ordinary meeting of the general assembly, provided that this accompanied by the approval of a

number of shareholders representing at least 10% of the shares represented at the meeting.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AM/ 008513

To the Shareholders of

Jordan Worsted Mills Company

(A Public Shareholding Limited Company)
Rusaifeh - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jordan Worsted Mills
Company and its subsidiary (together “the Group”) which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the consclidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity, and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consoclidated financlal position of the Company as at December
31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financtal Reporting Standards (IFRSs’).

Basis for Opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Internaticnal Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the
other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Company's consolidated
financial statements in Jordan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters, in our professional judgment, are the most significant matters in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters:

Valuation of Unquoted securities

Investments in  securities includes
investments in unquoted shares in the
amount of JD11,023,723 as at 31
December 2020. These Instruments are
classified as financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

As disclosed in Note (4) significant
accounting judgements and uncertain
estimates, the valuation of investments
in unquoted securities uses inputs other
than observable market data and
therefore are inherently subjective. It
also requires significant judgement to
be applied by management in
determining the appropriate valuation
methodology and use of various
assumptions like cash flows, discount
rates, market risk adjustments etc. The
valuations were performed by
management of the company.

Given the inherent subjectivity and
judgement required in the valuation of
such unquoted Investments that are
classified under level (3) fair value

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter.

We obtained an understanding of the
process adopted by management to
determine the fair value of unquoted
securities.

We assessed the design and implementation
of contrals in this area of the audit.

We agreed the valuations performed by
management to the amount reported in the
financial statements,

We assessed if the valuation methodology
and estimates used in the valuations were
reasonable in the circumstances and were
in compliance with the requirements of
IFRSs with the assistance of our internal
specialists.

We determined if the valuations took the
effects of the Covid-12 pandemic into
consideration.

We agreed the inputs into the valuation to
the latest audited or reviewed financial
statements, where applicable.

hierarchy, we determined this to be a
key audit matter, We reperformed the arithmetical accuracy

of the valuations.

We considered if the valuations indicated
any bias exhibited by management.

We assessed the disclosures in the financial
statements relating to this matter against
the requirements of IFRSs.

Other Matter

The accompanying censolidated financial statements are a translation of the statutory
financial statements which are in the Arabic Language to which references should be
made.

Other Information

Management is responsible for other information which comprises information in the
annual report excluding the consclidated financial statements and the independent
auditor's report thereon. Furthermore, we expect the annual report to be made
available to us after the date of our audit report. Qur opinion on the consolidated
financial statements does not cover other information, and we do not express any form
of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financtal statements, cur responsibility
is to read the other information when it becomes available to us. In doing so, we
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained In the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Managemant is respansible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financiat
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financiat statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA's, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financia! statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing
an opinion on effectiveness of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consalidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

’ Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the consolidated
financial information of the entitles or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the Company’s and its
subsidiary’s audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
comptied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguard procedures.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current year, and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulations preciude public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
shouid not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Group maintains proper accounting records duly organized and in line with the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. We recommend that the General
Assembly of Shareholders approve these consolidated financial statements.

(
Amman - lordan eloitte oucheé(M.E.) - Jordan

February 10, 2021



D MILLS NY
PUBLIC SHAR LDING ITED CC Y
RUSAIFEH - THE HASHEMITE KINGDQM OF JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31,
Note 2020 2019
ASSETS JD 1D

Current Assets:
Cash on hand and at banks 5 7,543,082 5,864,207
Financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss 6 1,989,093 2,713,199
Accounts receivable and other debt balances 7 115,693 144,688
Military and security receivables 8 426,560 2,054,615
Finished goods- Net 9 1,262,850 3,701,937
Goods under process - 82,358
Spare parts and other tools - Net 10 20,210 40,235
Total Current Assets 11,357,588 14,601,239
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 11 41,248,347 48,963,546
Financial assets at amortized cost 12 1,500,000 1,500,000
Investment in affiliate company 13 1,429,920 1,428,480

Total Investments 44,178,267 51,892,026
Fixed Assels:
Land at cost 96,344 85,404
Fixed assets at cost 4,935,312 5,173,319
(Less): Accurnalated depreciation (4,848,292) (5,024,658}
Net fixed assets excluding land 87,020 148,661

Total Fixed Assets 14 183,364 234,065

Total Assets 55,719,219 66,727,330

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Due to banks 15 438,183 522,481
Short-tarm loan i6 708 416,141
Payabies and other credit balances 17 427,647 625,715
Income tax provision 28/a 33,030 212,007
National Contributon tax Provision 259 3,002 22,855

Total Current Liabilities 502,570 1,799,199
End-of service indemnity provision 18 147,303 1,196,94%

Total Liabilities 1,049,873 2,996,148

OWNERS FQUITY

Authorized and Paid-up capltal 19/a 15,000,000 15,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 50,000 50,000
Statutory reserve 19/b 12,632,243 12,532,243
Voluntary reserve 19/c 10,000,000 10,000,000
Special reserve 19/d 7,333,000 7,333,000
Yarn rising prices reserve 19/e - 2,000,000
investment revaluation reserve (6,826,043) 381,705
Retsined earnings 21 12,622,677 12,019,022
Tota! Sharehalders’ Equity 50,711,877 59,315,970
Nan-controlling interests 22 3,957,469 4,415,212

Total Owners' Equity 54,669,346 63,731,182

Total Liabilities and Owners' Equity 55,719,216 66,727,330
Chairman of Boar ctors General Manager

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM .
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RSTED OMPANY

PUBLIC SHAREHOLDIN MITED COMPAN
RUSAIFEH - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT QR LQSS
For the Year Ended
December 31,
Note 2020 2019
o o
Net sales 4,855,119 5,331,274
Cost of Sales:
Finished goods-Beginning of the year 9 4,026,937 4,213,167
Cost of production 23 642,431 3,848,070
Cost of goods available for sale 4,669,368 8,061,237
Flnished goods-End of the year 9 {1,612,950) (4,026,937)
Cost of sales 3,056,418 4,034,300
Gross profit 1,798,701 2,296,974
Selling and distribution expenses 24 (49,653) (57,928)
Profit from sales 1,749,048 2,239,046
General and administrative expenses 25 (1,249,589) (1,219,059}
Operating Income 499,459 1,019,987
Net gain (foss) on financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss 26 {(719,305) 7,698
Dividends revenue from financial assets at falr vatue through other
comprehensive income 1,660,852 2,438,358
Returns from financial assets at amortized cost 82,726 82,500
Other Revenue - net 27 150,994 60,246
Profit for the year before income tax 1,674,726 3,608,789
Income tax Expense 28/b (48,000) (345,037}
National contribution tax Expense 29 (3,002) (22,855)
Profit for the year 1,623,724 3,240,897
Attributable to:
Shareholders 1,303,655 2,869,240
Non-controlling interests 320,069 371,657
1,623,724 3,240,897
Earnings per share for the year attributable to sharehoiders 30 -/087 -/190

Chairm the of Dir rs

neral Manager

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM .
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JORDAN WORSTED MILLS COMPANY

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOIDING LIMITER COMPANY})

RUSAIFEH - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED ST, ENT OF REHE I
For the Year Ended
December 31,
Note 2020 2019
10 jio)
Profit for the Year 1,623,724 3,240,897
Cther comprehensive income jtems:
Items not subsequently transferable to the consolidated statement of profit or loss:
Changes in investment revaluation reserve (7,485,560} (3,455,977)
Total Comprehensive Income (5,861,836) {215,080)
Total comprehensive Income is atiributable to:
Shareholders {5,904,093) (377,665)
Non«controlling interests 42,257 162,585
(5,861,836) (215,080)

Chairman of the Board of Directors

General Manager

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART

OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM.
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JORDAN WORSTED MILLS COMPANY
(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
RUSAIEEH - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended

Decernber 31,
Note 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 1 i3]
Profit for the year befare income Lax 1,674,726 3,608,789
Adjustrments for:
Provision for Prices for Stow Moving Tinished Goods 9 25,000 75,000
Pravision for spare parts and slow moving supplies 10 - 95,000
Depreciation of fixed assets 14 27,755 38,021
(Profits) sale of fixed assets 27 (53,669) -
Losses from revaluation of financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss 26 724,106 207.122
Dividends revenue from fAnancial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (1,660,852} {2,438,358)
Additions and transferred to End-of-services Indemnity provision 18 5,398 R
End-of-service Indemnity provision 18 15,247 80,077
Cash Flows from QOperating Activities before Changes In Working Caplital items 757,711 1,665,651
Decrease ([ncrease) in current assets:
Financial assets at fair value through statemant of profit or loss - 7,641
Accounts receivable and other debit batances 28,995 123,388
Military and security receivables 1,628,055 552 665
Finished goods 2,413,987 LB6,230
Goods under process 82,358 287,872
Yarn - 1,041,953
Spare parts and other tools - Net 20,02% 43,440
Goods In transit . .
(Cecrease) In current liabilities:
Payables and other credit balances {198,068) 169,154
Net Cash Flows feom Operating Activities before Tncome tax and End-of-service Indemnity Pald 4,733,063 4,077,994
Income tax pakd 28 (226,977) (361,021)
Natlonal contribution tax {22,855) -
End-of-service Indemnity paid - Net 18 (1,070,291) (73,686)
Nel Cash Fiows from Operating Activities 3,412,940 3,641,287
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Financlal assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 229,639 {249,639)
Dividends received from financial assets at fair value threugh other comprehensive income 1,660,852 2,438,358
Investment in an affiliate {1,440) -
Praceeds from sale of lands and fixed assets 89,621 -
{Purchase) of fixed assets 14 13,006) {575}
Net Cash Fiows from Investing Activities 1,865,666 2,188,144
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
(Decrease) in due to banks (94,298) (48,485)
{Decrease) in short-term loans (415,433} {224,357)
Non-Controiling Interest dividends paid 22 {500,000) {500,000)
Dividends Paid 20 (2,700,000} (3,375,000}
Net Cash Flows (Used in) Financing Activities {3,699,731) (4,147 842}
Net Increase in Cash 1,678,875 1,683,589
Cash on hanc 2nd at banks - Beglnning of year 5,864,207 4, 180 618
Cash on Hand and at Banks - Enc of year 5 7,543,082 5 864 207

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART
OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM,



JORDAN WOQRSTED MILLS COMPANY
(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
RUSAIFH — THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General

The Jordan Worsted Mills Company was registered as a public shareholding limited
company under number (41) on September 17, 1964 with its head office located in
Rusaifeh - Awajan District - The Hashemit Kingdom of Jordan, P.O.BOX 6060
Amman 11118 - Jordan. The Company’s main objectives are to invest in shares of
listed and unlisted companies; to manufacture and produce worsted in all shapes
and types; to manufacture worsted; and to build, equip, and manage a factory /
factories to manufacture worsted and trade in it,

The Company owns 80% of Jordan Fabric and Worsted Mills Private Limited
Shareholding Company, whose head office is in Rusaifeh, Awajan, The Hashemit
Kingdom of Jordan. Its postal address is P.O. Box 6060 Amman 11118 - Jordan.
The main objectives of this company are to manufacture and produce worsted,
yarn, and mills in various shapes and kinds; to produce and sew various kinds of
finished clothes; to use them as well as their accessories; and to trade in them. The
main objectives alsc include building, preparing, and managing a factory / factories
to manufacture the aforementioned and trade in them. The subsidiary had assets
equal to JD 19,975,906 and liabilities equal to JD 233,699 as of December 31,
2020. Moreover, revenue equaled JD 5,570,399 and cost of sales and expenses
amounted to JD 3,970,056 for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized by the Board
of Directors’ in its Meeting number (359) on February 10, 2021. These financial
statements are subject to the General Assembly’s approval.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial staterments encompass the financial statements of Jordan
Worsted Mills Company and the financial statements of its subsidiary, Jordan Fabric
and Worsted Mills Company, a private limited shareholding company after
eliminating intercompany balances and transactions.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the

Company and entity controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries), the consolidation

of the subsidiary starts from the date of acquisition, which is the date when the

Company gain control upon its subsidiary, and the Company Holds control until the

date of disposing the control of its subsidiary. Control is achieved when the

Company:

+ has the power over the investee;

+ is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

« has the ability to use its power to affects its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it contrels an investee, if facts and

circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elemernits
of control listed above.

- 10 -



When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it
considers that it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient
to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient
to give it power, including:

e The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and
dispersion of holdings of the cther vote holders;

« Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
« Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

« Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or
does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

When the Company loses control over any of its subsidiaries, the Company:

« Derecognizes the assets of the subsidiary (including goodwill) and liabilities;

« Derecognizes the carrying amount of any uncontrolled interest;

» Derecognizes the cumulative transfer differences recognized in equity;

« Derecognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

» Derecognizes the fair value of any investment held;

« Derecognizes any surplus or deficit in the income statement; and

» Reclassifies the Company's equity previously recognized in other comprehensive
income to the statement of income or retained earnings, as appropriate.

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the subsidiary that are
earned through institutions with special purposes (small or medium) for the same
period of preparing the company’s financial statements using the same accounting
policies,

Adjustments have been made to the subsidiary's consoiidated financial statements
when needed, so its accounting policies becomes in line with the accounting policies
that are used by other affiliated companies.

Balances, movements, revenues and internal expenses is eliminated completely
between the affiliated companies during the financial statement consolidation
Process.

Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretation
Committee (IFRIC), and prevailing local laws.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
principle except for financial assets and financial liabilities shawn at fair value at the
date of the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company are presented in Jordanian
Dinar, which is also its functiopal currency.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are consistent with those applied in the year ended December 31, 2019
except for the effect what are stated in Note (35-3) related to the consolidated
financial statements.

- 11 -



The following are the most significant accounting policies adopted by the Company:

a.

Inventory

Finished goods and spare parts are stated at cost (using the first - in, first - out
method) net of a provision for expired and slow-moving items or net realizable
value, whichever is lower. Moreover, work in process inventory and yarn are stated
at cost.

Information Segament

Business sectors represents a group of assets and operations that jointly provide
products or services subject to risks and returns different from those of other
business sectors (measured in accordance with the reports sent to the operations
management and decision makers in the Company).

The geographical sector relates to providing products or services in a specific
economic environment subject to risk and returns different from those of sectors
functioning in other economic envirenments.

Dividends revenue

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
This is the previous dividend date for listed equity securities, and usually the date
when shareholders approve the dividend for unlisted equity securities.

The presentation of dividend income in the consolidated statement of income
depends on the classification and measurement of the equity investment, i.e.:

« for equity instruments which are held for trading, dividend income is presented
in income Statement as Profit (losses) of Financial Assets at fair value through
the statement of income.; and

» for equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income, dividend income is presented in income statement as Dividends income
from financial assets through other Comprehensive income; and

e For equity instruments not designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income and not held for trading, dividend income is presented
as net income from other instruments at fair value through the statement of
income,

Financia] Instruments

Initial Recognition and Measurement:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Company’s
consolidated statement of financial position when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Recognized financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to, or deducted from, the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through the statement of income are
recognized immediately in income statement.

-12 -



If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Company will
account for such difference as follows:

+« If fair value is proved by a quoted price in an active market for symmetric asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets, then the difference is recognized in the statement of income on initial
recognition (i.e. day 1 profit or loss);

= In all other cases, the fair value is adjusted to be in line with the transaction price
(i.e. day 1 profit or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount
of the asset or liability).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to the statement of
income on a rational basis, only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor
(including time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset
ar liability or when derecognizing the instruments.

. Financial Assets

Initial Recognition

All financial assets are recognized on the trading date when the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset
within the timeframe established by the market concerned. They are initially measured at
fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair
value through the statement of income. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets classified as at fair value through the statement of income
are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Subsequent Measurement

All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of the entity's
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. Specifically:

. Debt instruments held within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding (SPPI}), are
subsequently measured at amortized cost;

. Debt instruments held within a business model whose objective is both to collect
the contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have
contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income;

. All other debt instruments (e.g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis, or
held for sale) and equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value
through the statement of income.

However, the Company may irrevocably make the following selection /designation at
initial recegnition of a financial asset on an asset- by-asset hasis;

" The Company may irrevocably select to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS (3} applies, in
other comprehensive income; and

. The Company may irrevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria as
measured at fair vatue through the statement of income, if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair value option).
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?ebt Instruments at Amortized Cost or at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
ncome

The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset and the Company’s business model

for managing the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, its contractual terms should give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding (5PPI).

For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g. if
there are repayments of principal). Interest consists of the consideration for the time
value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time, and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a
profit margin. The SPPI assessment is made in the currency in which the financial asset is
denominated.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement.
Contractual terms that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash
flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in
equity prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are
SPPI. An originated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending arrangement
irrespective of whether it is a loan in its legal form.

Assessment of Business_Models

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the
classification of a financial asset. The Company determines the business models at a level
that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. The Company’s business model does not depend on management’s
intentions for an individual instrument; therefore, the business model assessment is
performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

The Company has more than one business model for managing its financial instruments,
which reflect how the Company manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The Company's business models determine whether cash flows wil! result from
collecting ceontractual cash flows, selling financial assets, or both.

The Company considers all relevant information available when making the business
model assessment. However, this assessment is not performed based on scenarios that
the Company does not reasonably expect to occur, such as so-calied ‘worst case’ or
‘stress case’ scenarios. The Company takes into account all relevant evidence available
such as:

. The stated policies and objectives of the portfolic and application of those policies
whether the management strategy focuses on cbtaining contractual revenues,
maintaining specific profit rate matching the profit of financial assets with the
period of financial liabilities that finance those assets or obtaining cash flow from
selling assets. .

. How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within
that business mode! are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management
personnel; and

» The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model) and, in particular, the way in which those
risks are managed; and

» How the business managers are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is

based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows
coliected).
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At initial recognition of a financlal asset, the Company determines whether newly
recognized financial assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect
the commencement of a new business model. The Company reassess its business models
each reporting peried to determine whether the business models have changed since the
preceding period,

When a debt instrument measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is
derecognized, the cumulative gain/floss previously recognized in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to the Consolidated Statement of Income. In contrast,
for an equity investment designated as measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized in OCI is not
subseguently reclassified to Consolidated Statement of Income but transferred within
equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost or at fair vatue
through other comprehensive income are subject to impairment.

Finrancial Assets at fair Va hrough ment of Income
financial assets at fair value through the statement of income are:

« Assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and

» Assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash
flows or held to collect and sell; or

+ Assets designated at fair value through the statement of income using the fair value
option.

These assets are measured at falr value, with any gains/losses arising on re-
measurement recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Reclassifications
[f the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the

financial assets affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement
requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the
first reporting period following the c¢hange in business model, which results in
reclassifying the Company'’s financial assets. The changes in the contractual cash flows
are considered under the accounting policy on the modification and de-recognition of
financial assets described below.

Foreign Ex¢hange Gains and 5€5

The carrying amount of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined
in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting
period. Specifically:

« For financial assets measured at amortized cost that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognized In the statement of
income; and

» For debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
that are not part of a desighated hedging relationship, exchange differences on the
amortized cost of the debt instrument are recognized in the statement of income.
Other exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in the
investments revaluation reserve;

+ For financial assets measured at fair value through the statement of income that are
not part of a designated hedge accounting relationship, exchange differences as Gain
or losses are recognized in the statement of income .

» For equity instruments measured at falr value through other comprehensive income,

exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in the
investments revaluation reserve,
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Impairment

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on the following
financial instruments that are not measured at fair value through the statement of
income:

* Balances and deposits at banks ;
Accounts Receivable;
Financial assets at amortized cost (Debt investment securities);
Financial assets at fair vatue through other comprehensive income;
Off statement of financial position exposure subject to credit risk (Financial
guarantee contracts issued).

No impairment loss is recognized on equity investments.

With the exception of purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets
{which are considered separately below), ECLs are required to be measured through
a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

= 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that results from those default events on the
financial instrument that are peossible within 12 months after the reporting date,
{referred to as Stage 1); or

+ 12-month ECL, l.e. lifetime ECL that results from all possible default events over
the life of the financial insttument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit
risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
For altl1 other financial instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-
month ECL

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These
are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to
the Company under the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive arising from the weighting of multiple future economic scenarios, discounted
at the asset's EIR.

Credit-impaired Financial As

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence
of credit-impairment includes observable data about the following events:

+ Significant financial difficulty of the debtor or issuer;

* A breach of contract such as a default or past due Payment;

+ The lender of the debtor, for economic or contractuai reasons relating to the
debtor’'s financiai difficulty, having granted to the debtor a concession that the
debtor would not otherwise consider;

e The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties; or

e The purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred
credit losses.

It may not be possible to Identify a single discrete event. Instead, the combined
effect of several events may have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired.
The Company assesses whether debt instruments that are financial assets measured
at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are credit-
impaired at each reporting date. To assess if sovereign and corporate debt
instruments are credit impaired, the Group considers factors such as bond vyieids,
credit ratings.

A receivable or the balance is considered credit-impaired when a concession is
granted to the debtor due to a deterioration in the debtor’s financial condition, unless
there is evidence that as a result of granting the concession, the risk of not receiving
the contractual cash flows has reduced significantly, and there are no other
indicators of impairment, For financial assets where concessions are contemplated
but not granted, the asset is deemed credit-impaired when there is observable
gvidence of credit-impairment Including meeting the definition of default. The
definition of default includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back- stop if
amounts are overdue for 90 days or more. However, In cases where the assets
in}pairment is not recognized after 90 days overdue are supported by reasonabie
information.
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a. Financial Liabilities and Equity
Debt and equity instruments issued are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement,

A financial liability is a contractua! obligation te deliver cash or another financial
asset, or to exchan?e financial assets or financial liabilitles with another entity under
conditions ﬁotential y unfavorable to the Company, or a contract that will or may be
settled in the Company’s own equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for
which the Company is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of its own
equity instruments, or a derivative contract cver own equity that will or may be
settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash (or another financial
asset) for a fixed number of the Group's own equity instruments,

Equity Instruments

Paid up Capital

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Treasury Shares

Repurchase of the Company’'s own eguity instruments is recognized and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognized Consolidated Statement of Income on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial Liabilitie
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities *at fair value through the
statement of income or ‘other financial liabilities’.

h. Fixed Assets
- Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any accumulated

impairment. Moreover, fixed assets (except for land) are depreciated, when ready for
their intended use, according to the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives using rates ranging from 2% to 20%.

When the expected recoverable amount of any fixed assets Is less than its net book
value, the net book value is reduced te the expected recoverabie amount, and the
impairment loss is taken to the consolidated statement of income,

Fixed assets useful lives are reviewed at the end of each year and if the expected
useful life differs from the previous estimate, the difference is recorded in
subsequent years as a change in accounting estimates.

Fixed assets are disposed of when there are no expected future benefits from their
use or disposal.

Provision for end- of-service indemnity

End- of-service indemnity paid to terminated employees is charged to the end- of-
service indemnity provision. Moreover, a provision booked for the end- of- service
indemnity liability is recorded in the consolidated statement of income,

Income Tax

Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes and deferred taxes.

-

Accrued tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income. Moreover,
taxable income differs from income declared in the consolidated financial staternents
because the latter includes non-taxable revenue or tax expenses not deductible in
the current year but deductible in subsequent years, accumulated losses acceptable
by the tax authorities, items not accepted for tax purposes or subject to tax.

Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates prescribed according to the
prevailing laws, regulations and instructions of the countries where the Company
operates.

- Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of the
temporary timing differences between the value of assets or liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the value on the basis of which taxable income
is calculated. Moreover, deferred taxes (if any) are calculated based on the liability
method in the consclidated statement of financial position according to the tax rates
expected to be apptied upon the settlement of the tax liability or realization of the
dePerred tax assets. Moreover, the Company did not recognize deferred tax assets
because they were deemed immaterial and not possible to use. The Company did not
recognize_ deferred tax liability for the investment revaiuation reserve as the
Company s investment revenue is not taxable.
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k. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported only
in the consolidated statement of financial position, when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Company intends to
either settle them on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simuitaneously.

. Fair value

Fair value is defined as the price at which an asset is to be sold or paid to convert
any of the liabilities in a structured transaction between the market participants on
the measurement date, irrespective of whether the price can be realized directly or
whether it is estimated using another valuation technique. When estimating the fair
value of an asset or liability, the Company takes into consideration when determining
the price of any asset or liability whether market participants are required to
consider these factors at the measurement date. The fair value for measurement and
/ or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on the same
basis, except for measurement procedures that are similar to fair value procedures
and are not fair vaiue such as fair value as used in 1AS 36,

In addition, fair value measurements are classified for the purposes of financial
reporting to level (1), (2) or (3) based on the extent to which the inputs are clear
concerning the fair value measurements and the importance of inputs to the full fair
value measurements, These are as follows:

Level inputs (1) inputs derived from quoted (unadjusted) prices of identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that an enterprise can obtain on the measurement date;

Input level (2) inputs derived from data other than quoted prices used at level 1 and
observable for assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly; and

Level inputs (3) are inpuls to assets or liabiiities that are not based on observable
market prices.

m. Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has an obligation at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position arising from a past event, and the costs
to settle the cbligation are both probable and can be reliably measured.

. _Foreign Currency Tran ion
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Jordanian
Dinar at the exchange rates prevailing at year-end. Transactions in foreign
currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transactions. Exchange gains or losses resulting therefrom are recorded in the
consolidated statement of income.

0. Interest Revenue and Expenses
Interest revenue and expense are taken to the consolidated statement of income

using the accrual basis.

p. Sales

Revenue from the sale of goods is recagnized when all of the following conditions are

satisfied:

1. The Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods; and

2. The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; and

3. Revenue can be calculated reliably; and

4. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction wiil flow
to the Company; and

5. The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.
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a.__Investment in Affiliate

Affiliate companies are companies over which the Company exercises significant
influence related to financial and operational policies but does not control, with
ownership between 20%- 50 % of voting rights. Investment in affiliates is stated at
an amount egual to the Company’ s share in the affiliates’ net assets and the degree
of the Company’s participation in the affiliate. This is done by adjusting the
investment account for the change in the affiliate” s net assets caused by the change
in the Company s share In the affiliate’ s profit or loss according to the latest audited
or reviewed financial statements.

4. _Significant Accounting Judgmen nd k rces of Uncertainty Estimates
Preparation of the consolidated financial statements and application of the accounting
policies require management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that
affect the amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities and to disclose potential
liabilities. Moreover, these estimates and judgments affect revenues, expenses,
provisions, in general, expected credit losses, as well as changes in fair value that
appear in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within
shareholders' equity. In particular, the Company's management requires judgments
toc be made to estimate the amounts and timing of future cash flows. These
estimates are necessarily based on multiple hypotheses and factors with varying
degrees of estimation and uncertainty. Meanwhile, the actual results may differ from
estimates due to the changes arising from the cenditions and circumstances of those
estimates in the future.

Judgments, estimates, and assumptions are reviewed periodically. Moreover, the
effect of the change in estimates is recognized in the financial period in which the
change occurs if the change affects only the financial period. On the other hand, the
effect of the change in estimates is recognized in the financial period in which the
change occurs and in future periods if the change affects the financial period and
future financial periods,

Management believes that its estimates in the consolidated financial statements are
reasonable.

Significant judgements in applying the company's accounting policies;
The following are the significant judgments, other than those involving estimates

{and disclosed below) that management has used in the process of applying the
company's accounting policies and that have the most significant impact on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

- Ewvaluation of business model:

The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on the results of the
principal and interest payments test on the principal outstanding and the business
modet test (refer to note the financial statement note 3). The Company defines a
business model at a level that reflects how the groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
includes judgment that reflects all relevant evidence, inciuding how to assess the
performance of the assets and measure their performance, the risks that affect the
performance of assets and how they are managed, and how asset managers are
compensated. The Company menitors financial assets rmeasured at amortized cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income and derecognized before maturity to
understand the reason for derecegnition and whether the reasons are consistent with
the objective of the business held, In this respect, control is part of the Group's
continuous assessment of whether the business model under which the remaining
financial assets are retained is appropriate, and whether it is inappropriate if there is
a change in the business model, and therefore, a future change is made in the
classification of those assets. It was not demanded to make such changes through
the Presented Periods.
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- Significant increase in credlt risk:

The expected credit loss is measured as discussed in Note (3}, as an allowance
equivalent to the expected credit loss of 12 months for the assets of the first stage,
of the credit loss over the life of the assets of the second or third stage. The asset
moves to the second stage if credit risk increases significantly since initial
recognition. IFRS {9) does not specify what constitutes a significant Increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of any asset has increased significantly, the
Cofmpany takes Into account reasonable and reliable quantitative and qualitative
information.

- Establish groups of assets with similar credit risk characteristics:

When the expected credit losses are measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the basis of common risk characteristics (e.g. instrument
type, credit risk, collateral type, initial recognition date, remaining maturity period,
industry, borrower's geographic lccation, etc.). The Company monitors the
appropriateness of credit risk characteristics en an ongoing basis to assess whether
they are stiil similar. This is required to ensure that, in the event of a change in the
credit risk characteristics, the asset is properly reallocated. This may result in the
creation of new portfolios or the transfer of assets to an existing portfolio that better
reflects the credit risk characteristics of that group of assets.

- Models and assumptions used:
The Company uses various models and assumptions in measuring the fair value of
financial assets as well as in assessing the expected credit loss. The judgment is
applied when determining the best models for each type of asset as well as for the
assumptions used in those models, which include assumptions regarding the main
drivers of credit risk.

a. Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities
The Company classifies financial instruments or components of financial assets
at initial recognition either as a financial asset or a financial liability, or as an
equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
agreements and the definition of the instrument., The reclassification of a
financial instrument is subject to the substance of the financial statements and
not to its legal form,

The Company shall determine the ¢lassification at initial recognition and reassess
such determination, if possible and appropriate, at each date of the consolidated
statement of financial position.

When measuring financial assets and liabilities, certain assets and liabilities of
the Company are re-measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In
assessing the fair value of any assets or liabilities, the Company uses available
observable market data. In the absence of Tier 1 inputs, the Company conducts
evaluations using professionally qualified independent evaluators.

b. Fair value measurement

If the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities included in the
consolidated statement of financial position cannot be obtained from active
markets, these fair values are determined using a range of valuation techniques
involving the use of accounting models. If possible, the entered data for those
models will be extracted from the market data. In the absence of such market
data, fair values are determined by making judgments. These provisions include
liquidity considerations and model data such as derivative volatility, longer-term
discount rates, pre-payment ratios and default rates on asset-backed securities.
Management believes that the wvaluation techniques used are appropriate to
determine the fair value of financial instruments,

Critical accounting ju and key s es of estimation uncertain
In accordance with the accounting policies contained in IFRS and adopted by the
Company, management makes the following judgrnents and estimations that may
significantly affect amounts reported in these consclidated financial statements.
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Assets and liabilities at cost:

Management periodically reviews the assets and liabilities at cost for
estimating any impairment in value, which is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax:
The fiscal year is charged with the income tax expense in accordance with the
accounting regulations, laws and standards.

Lawsuits provision:

A provision is taken for lawsuits raised against the Company (if any). This
provision is subject to an adequate legal study prepared by the Company's
legal advisor. Moreover, the study highlights potential risks that the Company
may encounter in the future. Such legal assessments are reviewed
periodically.

End of service Indemnity Provision:
A provision is taken for employees™ End of service Indemnity according to the
laws and regulations.

Provision for credit losses:

Management is required to use significant judgments and estimates to
estimate the amounts and timing of future cash flows and assess the risks of
a significant increase in credit risks for financial assets after initial recognition
and future measurement information for the expected credit losses.

Productive lifespan of tangible assets and intangible assets:

The Company’s management periodically recalculates the useful lives of
tangible assets and intangible assets for calculating annual depreciation and
amortization based on the general condition of those assets and estimated
future useful lives. The impairment loss { if any) is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income for the year.

The cost of fixed assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives
according to the expected use of the asset, technological obsclescence and
software of the assets and residual value, Management did not calculate any
residual value of the assets as they are considered to be immaterial

Management has considered the effect of (Covid-19) and its unigue
circumstances and the risk exposures of the Company and has evaluated the
expected effects on the Company’s business/operations in order to review and
assess the potential risks arising due to this event. The outcome of this event
is unknown and therefore the impact on the entity cannot be reasonably
quantified at the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements.
However, management will continue to monitor this event and update the
effect of the same on its geing concern basis including its sclvency and capital
adequacy and will assess the impact on the estimates for expected credit loss
medel related to relevant financial assets, valuation of investment, equity and
debt investments, assessment of impairment indicators for tangible and
intangible assets, sufficiency of technical reserves and reasonableness of the
inputs used for such purpose on its financial statements for the period ended
on December 31,2021 and future period.

The effects of {COVID-19) on the Company’s operatiocns continues to evolve,
hence there are significant risks and uncertainties associated with it future
impact on business, and therefore, the Company continues to update its plans
toc seek and respond to them.
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5. Cash on Hand and at Banks
This ltem consists of the following:

December 31,

2020 2019
D D
Cash on hand 726 2,224
Current accounts - Jordanian Dinar 5,870 80,800
Time deposit at Jordan Ahli Bank — member of the
Board of Directors * 7,536,486 5,781,183

7,543,082 5,864,207

* The time deposit is monthly term, automatically renewable, and bears interest at
4.125% annually, Moreover the deposit includes 500 thousand Dinar cash
collateral against credit facilities granted to Jordan Worsted Mills Company (Parent
Company) as of December 31, 2020.

6. Financial Assets at Fair Value through the Statement of Profit or Loss
a.  This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2020 2019
D JD
Financial assets listed at Amman Stock Exchange 1,985,093 2,713,189

Receivables and othe it Balance
This item consists of the following:
December 31,

2020 2019

h») D
Trade receivables 150 1,551
Accrued revenue 35,034 35,034
Employees receivables 20,550 -
Prepaid expenses 6,665 57,065
Refundable deposits and customs deposits 10,769 10,769
Sales tax 42,525 40,269

115,693 144,688

8. __Military and Security Recejvables
This item represents military and security receivables, and the Company applies a
policy of dealing with credit worthy parties in order to mitigate the risk of financial
loss from defaults. The management has not recorded a provision for credit loss in
respect of receivables since the receivables are in total for military and
government security and its payments are guaranteed.

5. Finished Gocds-Net
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2020 2019
D D
Finished Goods 1,612,950 4,026,937
(Less): Allowance for slow-moving inventory (350,000} (325,000)
1,262,950 3,701,937
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10.

The movement on the allowance for slow moving inventory is as follows:
December 31,

2020 2019
JD 15
Balance at the beginning of the year 325,000 250,000
Allowance during the year 25,000 75,000
Balance at the end of the year 350,000 325,000

Spare Parts and Varicus Supplies - Net

11,

This item consists of the following:
December 31,

2020 2019

D D
Spare parts 689,899 690,924
Raw materials and various supplies 6,511 6,511
696,410 697,435
(Less): Provision for slow-moving items {695,000}  {695,000)
1,410 2,435

Packaging department assets and (sampling

And processing) books - -
Factory assets 18,800 37,800
20,210 40,235

Movement on the provision for slow-moving items is as follows:
December 31,

2020 2019
D D
Balance at the beginning of the year 695,000 500,000
Provision during the year - 95,000
Bzlance at the end of the year 695,000 695,000

Financial Assets_at Fair Value through other Comprehensive Income

This item consists of the following:
December 31,

2020 2019
D o
Financial assets listed at Amman Stock Exchange 30,224,624 35,402,176
Unlisted Financial assets * 11,023,723 13,561,370

41,248,347 48,963,546

The fair value of the unlisted investments has been determined based on the
latest audited or reviewed set of the financial statements or management
accounts and other valuation metheds. This is deemed to be the best tool
available to measure the fair value of those investments.
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12. Financial Asset
This item consists of the following:

Number December 31, Number December 31,

of bonds 2020 of bonds 2019
D D
Arab International Hotels
Company's bonds * 1500 1,500,000 1500 1,500,000
1,500,000 1,500,000

* The Arab International Hotels Company’s bonds mature on January 29, 2022.
They bear interest at a fixed annual rate of 5.5%. The bonds are payable in two
instalments on January 29 and July 29 every year.

13. Investment in Affiliate Company

This item represents the cost of the investment of the Company and its subsidiary
in the Arab International Real Estate Company, representing around 40% of the
investee’s capital of JD 3.6 million. The affiliate was established on June 28, 2007,
and its main objectives are to develop investments in various areas of tourism and
real estate; to develop and manage construction, housing, and real estate projects
and markets; to buy, sell, and invest real estates and lands inside and outside the
city planning; and to manage housing, commercial, and other complexes. This
amount represents the Company’s share in the affiliate’s net assets. It is also
equivalent to the investment in the affiliate adjusted by the changes in the
Company's share in the affiliate’s net assets and by the amount of the
Company’s share in the affiliate’s profits and losses based on the latest audited or
reviewed financial statements.

The financial information related to the affiliate company is as follows:

December 31,

2020 2019
D D
Assets 3,576,580 3,577,600
Liabilities (1,760) {1,988)
Net assets 3,574,830 3,575,612
Company’s share in the affiliate
company’s net assets 1,429,920 1,428,480
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15. Due to Banks
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2020 2019

JD 1D
Jordan Ahli Bank - QOverdraft* 397,259 19,898
Jordan Ahll Bank - Overdraft** 40,923 502,583

438,183 522,481

* The Company was granted an overdraft facility with a ceiling of JD 500 thousands,
at an annual interest rate of 5.125% by Jordan Ahli Bank (member of the Board of
Directors). The loan is guaranteed by the Company, and the overdraft is due on
July 31, 2021.

**  The Company was granted overdraft facilities with a ceiling of ID 2 million by
Jordan Ahli Bank {(member of the Board of Directors) This credit facility is
guaranteed by the Company and bear interest at an annual interest rate of 7.5%
for the Bank. Moreover, the overdraft are due on Cctober 31, 2021.

- There are no non-cash transactions for the above overdraft facilities.

16. Short-term Loans
The parent company has obtained revolving loan from Societe General Bank -
Jordan of JD 2 million for financing the Company's operations with a maturity
period of 365 days (renewable) from the loan date with variable interest of
7.65% annually. This loan has bsen granted without guarantees,

- There are no non-cash transactions for the above revolving loans.

17, Pa les and Other Cre 1
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2020 2019

1D o
Accounts Payable 29,230 60,887
Shareholders’ deposits 296,197 347,666
Employees Payabies * - 117,162
Board of Directors remuneration for the parent
and subsidiary 100,000 100,000
Rents received in advance 2,220 -

427,647 625,715

* This Item Represent compensations and Remuneration for Employees whom their
Service were ended in December 2019 and their Benefits were paid in January
2020,
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18. End-of Service Indemnity Provision
Movement of the provision for end-of service indemnity during the year is as

follows:
2020 2019
JD o

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,196,949 1,190,559
Additions 15,247 80,077
Transferred during the year* 5,398 -
Payments during the year (1,070,251) {73,687)

Balance at the end of the year 147,303 1,196,949

* This amount represents a refund of a previously advance payment from the end of
service indemnity provision account.

19. Capital and Reserves

a. Capltal
the authorized and paid-up capital amounted to 1D 15 million distributed over
15,000,000 shares with a par value of 1D 1 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,

b. Statutory Reserve
This item represents accumulated amounts transferred from annual net income

before tax at a rate of 10% during prior years according to the Jordanian
Companies Law. The statutory reserve is deducted from the Company and its
subsidiary. This reserve cannot be distributed to shareholders,

C. Voluntary Reserve
This item represents accumulated amounts transferred from the profits of the
parent company at a rate not exceeding 20%. Voluntary reserve is used for the
purposes approved by the Board of Directors, and the General Assembly has the
right te distribute all or part of this amount as dividends to shareholders.

d. Special Reserve

This item represents the cumulative amounts transferred from appropriable profits
according to the bylaws which state the following:” Based on a proposal by the
Board of Directors, the General Assembly has the right to appropriate any
percentage of annual profits to the account of any other reserves deemed
necessary for the Company’s Interests, without regard to the labels of those
Reserves”.

e, Yarn Rising Prices Reserve
This item represents Yarn rising prices reserve that is appropriated according to

the Board of Directors™ Decisions due to the rising prices of yarn in the markets
and the fixed sale contracts that the Company is cormmitted to for years to come.
And according to the resolution of the General Assembly meeting for Jordan Fabric
and Worsted Mills Company on June 8, 2020, the General Assembly approved to
transfer from Yarn rising prices reserve amount of JD 2 million to the Retained
Earnings.

20. Dividends and Proposed Dividends
Proposed Dividen
The Board of Directors recommended in it's meeting held at February 10, 2021
the distribution of 14% of the registered capital as dividends to shareholders for
the current year which is equivalent to JD 2.1 million , subject to the approval of
the General Assembly.

Dividends

the General Assembly approved in its Ordinary Meeting Held at June 28 , 2020 the
distribution of dividends to shareholders equal to 18% of capital which equivalent
to JD 2,700 million were distributed.
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21. Retained Earnings

This item consists of the following:

Balance-Beginning of the year
Gains from financial assets at
fair  wvalue through  other
comprehensive income

Realized cumulative change in
fair value during the year

profit for the year
Distributed dividends

Balance-End of the year

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings

Realized Unrealized * Total Reafized Unrealizeg * Total
fiin] 1D 1D b Jo Jo

10,888,849 1,130,173 12,019,022 11,193,962 1,330,820 12,524,782
2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - -
175 (175} - (6,475) 6,475 -
2,027,761 (724,106} 1,303,655 3,076,362 (207,122) 2,869,240
(2,700,000} - 2,700,00 (3,375,000} - (3,375,000)
12,216,785 405,892 12,622,677 10,888,849 1,130,173 12,019,022

* Restricted as of December 31, 2020 in according with the directives of the Jordan
Securities Commission.

22. Non-Controlling Interes

This item represents t
Liability) which is 20% owned by the Jordanian Armed Forces,

he rights of Al Mamlakah Investment Group {Limited

in the equity of

Jordan Fabric and Worsted Mills Private Shareholding Company (the Subsidiary) as
of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

According to the decision o
Company held on June 8,

approved to distribute 25% o
year 2019, as the rights of non-con

500 thousand dinars (500 thousand dinars for the year 2018).
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23. Cost of Production
This item consists of the following:

2020 2019
Yarn used in production: D D
Yarn - beginning of the year - 1,041,953
Yarn purchases - 964,663
(Less): Yarn - End of the year - -
Cost of yarn used in production - 2,006,616
Salaries and wages for Factory and Maintenance 262,355 655,790
Overtime wages 15,568 23,611
Health insurance and medical expenses 7,393 65,943
Company’s share in social security 13,758 49,805
Maintenance and spare parts 5,459 79,697
Factory vehicles expenses 7,290 19,493
Buildings maintenance 1,337 9,335
Factory cleaning 9,803 17,354
Fees, permits, and taxes 125,044 102,045
Electricity 13,283 92,138
Supplies 449 12,255
Bulldings and devices insurance premiums 11,400 15,802
Company’s contribution to workers®™ buffet 2,308 7,814
Rents - -
Fuel and Qil 19,000 158,013
Transportation 3,609 10,327
Provision for spare parts and stow-moving Items - 95,000
Provision for Prices on slow moving Goods 25,000 75,000
Workers' uniform and other expenses 85 523
Stationery and printings 107 129
Water and water inspection fees 8,006 24,901
Fabric inspection fees 15,000 15,000
End-of-service indemnity provision 552 8,879
Depreciation-Factory buildings 469 1,757
Depreciation-machinery, devices, and Factory furniture
and equipment 6,076 6,173
Depreciation-Factory vehicles 6,722 6,703
Total 560,073 3,560,198
Work-in-process inventory - Beginning of the year 82,358 370,230
Work-in-process inventory -~ End of the year - (82,358)
Cost of production 642,431 3,848,070
24. Selling and Distribution Expenses
This item consists of the following:
2020 2019
D D
Promotion and advertisement 181 -
Sales stamping stamps 42,404 49,671
Jordan universities’ fees on sales 7,068 8,257
49,653 57,928
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25, eneral Administrative Expense
This item consists of the following:

Management employees’ salaries

Representation allowance

Health insurance and management therapies

Company's share in social security

Donations and subsidies *

Transportation

Paid End of Service Indemnity

End of Service Indemnity Provision

Fees, permits, and taxes

Vehicles Expenses

Vehicles Depreciation

Depreciation - furniture, office equipment,
and computers

Depreciation- Office buildings

Professional Fees

Post, telephone, and import stamps

Stationery, printings, and maintenance for office
equipment

Hospitality

Overtime salaries for management employees

Other eXpenses

Rents

Promotion and advertisements

Land sale commissions

2020 2019

3D 1D
611,170 619,528
125,000 125,000
5,188 15,585
8,156 14,970
81,994 72,932
101,792 108,482
108,967 -
15,247 71,199
52,353 50,858
13,822 20,698
10,484 19,278
3,201 3,304
803 805
44,405 29,105
14,976 17,441
12,139 13,937
16,815 10,012
2,360 2,053
8,318 8,481
8,000 8,000
3,521 6,991
878 -
1,249,589 1,219,059

* This item represents donations and subsidies paid according to the resolutions of the
Board of Directors to charities, governmental bodies, and not-for-profit organizations.

26. Net {(losses) profi rom _Financial A

or Loss
This item consists of the following:

Dividends revenue

Gain from sale of financial assets at fair value through
statement of profit or loss

(Losses) from revaluation of financial assets at fair
value through statement of profit or loss- Unrealized

27.  Other Revenue - Net
This item consists of the following:

Parent’ s and subsidiary s Board of Directors’
remunerations

Interest and bank fees expense

Interest incorme

Gain from sale of fixed assets

Other revenues

-30-

at_Fair Value through the Statement of Profit

2020 2019
D D
4,800 213,181
- 1,639
(724,105) (207,122)
(719,305) 7,698
2020 2019
D 1D
(100,000) (100,000)
(21,373) (86,236)
214,999 245,616
53,669 -
3,699 866
150,994 60,246




28, Income Tax
a. Income Tax Provision
The movement on the income tax provision is as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019
JD o

Balance - beginning of the year 212,007 227,991

Income tax paid for the year and past year (226,977) (361,021)

Income tax differences on past years - 2,137

Provision for income taxes taken during the vear 48,000 342,900

Balance - End of the Year 33,030 212,007
Income tax nses statement in the statement of it_or loss is as follows:

The Income tax expense in the statement of profit or loss is as follows:

For the year ended December 31

2020 2019
Blo D
Income tax differences on prior years - 2,137
Income tax provision taken during the year 48,000 342,900
48,000 345,037

c. Deferred Tax
The deferred tax benefits of the owner company resulting from the time differences are
not shown in the income taxes taken in the accounts of the company, according to the
requirements of International Accounting Standard (12) the fact that the owner company
engages in investment activity which is exempt from income tax.

The deferred tax benefits arising from the differences are not shown in the income taxes
paid on the allowances taken in the accounts of the subsidiary, as it is not expected to
benefit from them in the near future.

d. Tax status
The income tax of the owner company has been settled until the end of the year 2019,
and in the opinion of the Management and the tax advisor, the company will not have
any tax obligations as on December 31, 2020 due to the lack of taxable income.

The income tax of its subsidiary was settled untll the end of the year 2018, the financial
estimate statement for the year 2019 was also submitted on time, this An allowance has
been calculated and recorded for the income tax for the year ended December 31 2020,
and in the opinion of the Management and tax advisor, it will not have any obligations to
the company that exceed the allocations taken as of December 31 2020.

29, National Contribution Tax
This Item Represent 1% of the Taxable income as a “National Contribution”, and that is

according to the income Tax Law No. (34) 2014 and its Amendments which is Affective
since the Beginning of 2019.

30. Earnin r Share for the ributable to Sharehelders
This item consists of the following:
2020 2019
D o
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders 1,303,655 2,869,240
Number of shares 15,000,000 15,000,000
Earnings per share for the year -/087 /19

- 31 -



31._Risk Management
a. Capital Risk Management

The Company managdes its capital to ensure its ability to continue as a going concern and
to maximize the return to stakeholders through achieving an optimal balance between
equity and debts. The Company’s policy has not changed during the year.

b. Market Risks

Market risks are risks are the risks of losses in value resulting from market price changes
such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity instrurments, and subsequently
changes in the present value of financial instruments off-and on- the consolidated

financial position.

1. Exchange Rate Risks

Exchange rate risk is related to ¢hanges in the value of financial instrument due to

changes in foreign exchange prices.

The main operations for the Company is in Jordanian dinar and the risk is from the changes in
the currency exchange price which require the company to pay in foreign currency and since
the Jordanian dinar {the Company’s functional currency) is pegged to the US Dollar. The
management assume that the risk from foreign currency exchange is immaterial.

2. Share Price Fluctuation Risk

- Share price fluctuation risk represents the decline in fair value due to changes in price

indexes and individual share prices.

- The following table illustrates the effect of a 5% increase (decrease) in the index of
Amman Stock Exchange, in which the shares are traded as of the consolidated financial

statements date

Effect on Equity Effect on Net Income
2020 Change in Index Profit \ (Loss) Profit \ {Loss)
iD 3/»]
Financial Markets 5% Increase 99,455 1,511,231
Financial Markets 5% Decrease (99,455) (1,511,231}

3. Interest Rate Risks

Interest rate risk represents the risks resulting from changes in the financial instrument as
a result of the change in average interest rates prevailing in the market. Moreover, the
Company and its subsidiaries continually manage their exposure to interest risk, and all
varied considerations such as financing and renewal of the current positions are revalued

continually.

The sensitivity analysis below is determined according to the exposure to interest rates
reiated to bank deposits and due to banks as of the date of the consolidated statement
of financial position. Furthermore, the analysis was prepared on the assumption that
the outstanding amount as of the date of the consolidated statement of financial
position was outstanding during the whole year. An increase or decrease of 0/5%,
which represents the Company's and its subsidiary” s management's assessment of the

likely and acceptable change In interest rates, is used.

+ 5% -{5)%
2020 2019 2020 2019
o] 0] o D
(Loss) Profit for the year 39,877 33,990 (3%9,877) (33,996)
Owners’ equity 39,877 33,990 (38,877) (33,996)
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4. Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risk, also known as financing risk, is the inability of the Company and its
subsidiary to provide the funding necessary to settle its obligations on the due dates. The
Company manages liquidity risks by keeping reserves, continuously controlling cash
flows, and matching the maturities of financial assets and liabilities, Part of cash is
invested in cash balances at banks and financial assets at fair value through the
statement of income and, thus, is available to meet short-term and mid-term obligations
and liquidity management requirements.

The Following Table describes the Maturities of the Financial Liabilities of the Company:
December 31

2020 2019
Less than one  Less than one

year year

iD D

Due to banks 438,183 522,481
Short-term loans 708 416,141
Payables and other credit balances 427,647 625,715
1Incore tax provision 33,030 212,007

899,568 1,776,344

d. Credijt Risks
Credit risk is the risk of failure of the other party to fulfil its contractual obligations, causing losses
to the Company and its subsidiary. Moreover, the Company and its subsidiary follows the policy
of dealing with only creditworthy parties, so as to reduce the risk of financial losses
resulting from failure to meet commitments.

The Company s and its Subsidiary s financial assets consist mainly of Military and security
agencies receivables. Moreover, the financial assets and cash and cash equivalents do not
represent high concentration of credit risks, as the Military is comprised of more than one
party.

32. Contingent Liabilities
As of the date of the consolidated statement of financial position, the Company was
contingently liable as foliows:

December 31,

2020 2019
D D
Letters of guarantees 650,000 650,000
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33. Balances of and Transactions with Related Parties
The detalls of the balances and transactions with related parties (Companies and Corporations
represented by the Board of Directors) as of the end of the year are as follows:

December 31

2020 2019
On-Consclidated Statement of Financial Position Items: I D
Time deposit at Jordan Ahfi Bank —~ Member of the Board of Directors 7,536,486 5,781,183
Military receivables - Member of the Board cf Directors 426,560 2,054,615
Bank(creditor)-Arab Bank-member of the Board of Directors - -
Bank{creditor)-Jordan Ahli Bank-member of the Board of Directors {40,923) (502,583)
Bank(creditor)-Jordan Ahli Bank-member of the Board of Directors {397,259) (19,898)
Current accounts-Arab Bank-member of the Board of Directors 2,035 507
Current accounts-Jordan Ahli Bank-member of the Board of Directors 3,826 80,541
Off- Capsolidated Statement of Financial Position Items:
t etters of Guarantee - Arab Bank- member of the Board of Directors 150,000 150,000
Letters of Guarantee - Jordan Ahli Bank- member of the Board of
Directors 500,000 500,000
For the Year Ended
December 31,
2020 2019
Consolidated Statement of Profit or lgss Items: D D
Military sales-Board of Directors 4,854,455 6,630,386
Sales Discount* - 300,000
o . 92,236
Debit interest and commissions 21,373
Credit interest 214,999 245,616

In accordance with the approval of the company’s board of directors on March 27 2019, a
discount of 300,000 dinars was granted to the"Al Zay” company for Finished Goods
Manufacturing, due to the purchase of very large quantities of fabrics and large amounts of
money over the past long years as they were reduced from total sales for the current year.

There are credit facilities other than Exploiter granted to the subsidiary in the current
manner owed a ceiling of five hundred thousand dinars from the Arab Bank.

On August 10 2017, the Company received a letter from the Defense Purchasing
Director/General Headquarters of the Jordanian Armed Forces-Arab Army No. M 5H
7/12/2010, Worsted/10038, dated August 8 2018, informing the Company that agreement
No. M SH 7/12/2010/ Worsted/22, which relates to purchasing military fabric from the
subsidiary company (Jordan Fabric and Worsted Mills Private Shareholding Company) will
not be extended after the year 2020. The period of delivery of the agreed upon guantities
for the years 2018 until 2020 is extended until 2022. The Company is currently trying to
find alternative plans to replace the sale that were made to the military parties to support
the company’s continuation beyond the year 2020.

The Jordan Armed Forces and Security Department mentioned above are considered the
main consumer of the subsidiary' s products according to the terms of the signed
agreements between the two parties, and the purchase of their yarn is agreed upon in the
purchase contracts.

Salaries, bonuses, and other benefits for the Board of Directors and executive
management amounted to JD 987,400 for the year 2020.
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34,  Segmental and Geographical Distribytion

The following is information about the Company's business sector according to activities:

Total
For the year ended
Decemnber 3%,

Manufacturing Investing * 2020 2019
o D o D

Sales 4,855,119 - 4,855,119 6,331,274
Cost of sales {3,056,418) - (3,056,418) (4,034,300)
Company’s business sector results 1,798,701 - 1,798,701 2,296,974
Selling and distribution expenses (49,653) - (49,653) (57,928)
General and administrative expenses (812,983) (436,606) (1.249.589)  (1,219,059)
Financtal assets income - net - 1,024,273 1,024,273 2,528,556
{Expenses) Other income - net 188,110 (37,116) 150,994 60,246
Net profit for the year before income tax 1,124,175 550,551 1,674,726 3,608,789
Income tax expenses (48,000) - (48,000) (345,037)
National Contribution Tax Expense (3,002) - {3,002) (22,855)

Profit for the year 1,073,173 550,551 1,623,724 3,240,897

* Net after excluding the Company's share of the Subsidiary's distributed profits during the
year 2019 of ID 2 million from this sector.

B December 31
Manufacturing Investing 2020 2019
Other Information i]») 1 D 1D

Sector Assets
19,975,906 35,743,313 55,719,219 66,727,330

Sector Liabilities 233,699 816,174 1,049,873 2,996,148

- All the assets and operations of the Company and its Subsidiary are within the Hashemite
Kingdom of Jordan.
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35, Application of the new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

a.

New and amended JFRS Standards that are effective for the current year:

The following new and revised IFRSs have been adopted and are effective for financial
periods beginning on or after Januvary 1, 2020 in the preparaticn of the Group's
consolidated financial statements that did not materially affect the amounts and
disclosures in the consoclidated financial statements for the year and prior years, which
may have an impact on the accounting treatment of future transactions and
arrangements:

Impact of the initial application of Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

In September 2019, the IASB issued Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to
IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7). These amendments modify specific hedge accounting
requirements to allow hedge accounting to continue for affected hedges during the period
of uncertainty befcre the hedged items or hedging instruments affected by the current
interest rate benchmarks are amended as a result of the on-going interest rate
benchmark reforms.

The amendments are relevant to the Group given that it applies hedge accounting to its
benchmark interest rate exposures,

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a business

The Group has adopted the amendments to IFRS 3 for the first time in the current year,
The amendments clarify that while businesses usually have outputs, outpuis are not
required for an integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be
considered a business an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of
replacing any missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs. The
amendments also introduce additional guidance that helps to determine whether a
substantive process has been acquired.

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. Under
the optional concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business
if substantially ali of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar assets. The amendments are applied prospectively
to all business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or
after January 1, 2020.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

The Company has adopted the amendments included in Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards for the first time in the current year. The
amendments include consequential amendments to affected Standards so that they refer
to the new Framework. Not all amendments, however, update those pronouncements
with regard to references to and quotes from the Framework so that they refer to the
revised Conceptual Framework,

The Standards which are amended are IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8,
1AS 34, IAS 37, 1AS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32.
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Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of material

The Company has adopted the amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 for the first time in the
current year. The amendments make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to
understand and are not intended to alter the undertying concept of materiality in IFRS
Standards. The concept of 'obscuring’ material information with immaterial information
has been included as part of the new definition,

The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed from 'could influence’ to
‘could reasonably be expected to influence'. The definition of material in IAS 8 has been
replaced by a reference to the definition of material in IAS 1. In addition, the IASB
amended other Standards and the Cenceptual Framework that contain a definition of
'material' or refer to the term ‘material’ to ensure consistency.

Impact of the initial application of Covid-19-Related Rent Conhcessions
Amendment to IFRS 16

In May 2020, the IASB issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS
16) that provides practical relief to tessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by introducing a practical expedient to IFRS 16.
The practicai expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-
related rent concession is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shail
account for any change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19-related rent
concession the same way it would account for the change applying IFRS 16 if the change
were not a lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of COVID-19 and cnly if all of the following conditions are met:

a) The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the censideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

b) Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before
June 30, 2021 (a rent concession meets this condition if it results in reduced lease
payments on or before June 30, 2021 and increased lease payments that extend
beyond 30 June 2021),; and

c) There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.
The application of these amendments did not have a significant impact on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements, since there were no rent concession from lessors
during the year.
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b. New and revised IFRS in issue but not yvet effective:
At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the Company has not applied
the foliowing new and revised IFRS Standards that have been Issued but are not yet
effective:

Effective for
annual periods

Ne revised IFRSs beginning on or after
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 {Amendments January 1,2021

to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, 1AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, IFRS 7
Financial Instruments Disclosures, IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts and IFRS 16 Leases)

The amendments in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7/, IFRS 4
and 1FRS 16) introduce a practical expedient for
modifications reqguired by the reform, clarify that hedge
accounting is not discontinued solely because of the IBOR
reform, and introduce disclosures that allow users to
understand the nature and extent of risks arising from the
IBOR reform to which the entity is exposed to and how the
entity manages those risks as well as the entity’s progress in
transitioning from IBORs to alternative benchmark rates,
and how the entity is managing this transition.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations relating to January 1,2022
Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update an outdated reference to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS 3 without significantly
changing the requirements in the standard.

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equiprnent January 1,2022
relating to Proceeds before Intended tUse

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity
recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and January 1,2022
Contingent Assets relating to Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either
be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples
would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example
would be the aliocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).
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Effective for
annual periods

New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 - 2020 January 1,2022

Makes amendments to the following standards:

s IFRS 1 First-Time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards -~ The amendment permits a
subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of IFR5 1 to
measure cumulative translation differences using the
amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent’s
date of transition to IFRSs.

+ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — The amendment clarifies
which fees an entity includes when it applies the '10 per
cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of I[FRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity
includes only fees paid or received between the entity
(the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or
recelved by either the entity or the lender on the other's
behalf.

e IFRS 16 Leases — The amendment to Ilustrative Example
13 accompanying IFRS 16 removes from the example
the lllustration of the reimbursement of leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to resclve any
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise because of how l|ease
incentives are illustrated in that example,

o IAS 41 Agriculture - The amendment removes the
requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to
exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair
value of a biological asset using a present value
technique.

The management does not expect the adoption of the Standards and Interpretations
listed above to have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company in
future periods.
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